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December 11, 2013

To the Chairman and the Members of the Maryland Transportation Authority:

We are pleased to respectfully submit the first Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
of the Maryland Transportation Authority (Authority) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 
which includes the financial statements of the Authority. The Finance Division of the Authority has 
prepared the CAFR and the financial reports as required by the Trust Agreement by and between 
the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon as Trustee.  The data as presented consists of the 
Authority’s management representation of its finances. The responsibility for the accuracy, com-
pleteness and fairness of the data rests with management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, 
this report contains data complete and reliable in all material respects. 

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Authority 
has established an internal control structure designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets 
are safeguarded from loss, theft or misuse and that adequate and reliable accounting data is com-
piled to prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  The cost of internal control should not outweigh their benefits; 
therefore, the Authority’s comprehensive framework of internal control has been designed to pro-
vide reasonable rather than absolute assurances that the financial statements will be free from 
material misstatements.

The Authority’s Trust Agreement requires an annual audit of the Authority’s financial state-
ments by an independent audit firm. The Authority’s financial statements have been audited by 
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, (CLA) a firm of certified public accountants, selected by the Authority 
through a competitive process. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable as-
surance that the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2013, are free of material misstatements. CLA’s audit was performed in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and government auditing standards and accordingly, included such 
tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures considered necessary during 
the audit. Based upon the audit, the independent auditors issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion 
on the Maryland Transportation Authority’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2013. The Independent Auditor’s report is presented in the Financial Section of this report. 

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the Independent Audi-
tor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial 
statements.  This letter of transmittal complements the MD&A and should be read in conjunction 
with it. 

In accordance with the above mentioned guidelines, the accompanying report consists of  
three sections:

•	 The Introductory Section contains the letter of transmittal; a discussion of the Authority’s 
profile, organizational structure, executive management team, and facilities; long-term fi-
nancial planning; relevant financial policies; investment policies; economic outlook; and 
acknowledgements.

•	 The Financial Section begins with the Independent Auditor’s report and basic financial 
statements. The notes, an integral part of the basic financial statements, are intended to 
further enhance an understanding of the Authority’s current financial status. Supplemental 
information for traffic volume, toll revenue and investments is also included in this section.

•	 The Statistical Section provides information that is useful for understanding the Authority’s 
financial condition and depicts the past six years of history and financial and operational 
trends of the Authority.
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PRO   F IL  E  O F  TH  E  AUTHORITY         

Established in 1971, the Authority is an independent State 
agency responsible for constructing, managing, operating and 
improving the State’s toll facilities, as well as for financing new 
revenue-producing transportation projects. The Authority acts  
on behalf of but is separate from the Maryland Department of 
Transportation.  It is a nonbudgeted state agency and does not 
receive money from the state’s General Fund or the Transporta-
tion Trust Fund.

MDTA’s eight toll facilities include four bridges, two tunnels 
and two turnpikes.  The newest facility, the Intercounty Connec-
tor (ICC), connects the I-270 corridor in Montgomery County 
and the I-95 corridor in Prince George’s County and is the State’s 
first all-electronic toll facility.  The ICC’s first segment from I-
270/I-370 at Shady Grove to MD 97 (Georgia Avenue) opened 
in February 2011 and the next ten miles, extending to I-95 at 
Laurel, opened in November 2011.  The final contract, which 
includes building collector-distributor lanes along I-95 between 
the ICC and MD 198 and extending the ICC from I-95 to US 
1, is scheduled to open to traffic in spring 2014.  Also under 

construction are eight miles of Express Toll Lanes on I-95 from 
the I-95/I-895 split to north of the I-95/MD 43 interchange, with 
scheduled completion in late 2014.

In March 2012, the Authority entered into a 35-year public-
private partnership with Areas USA for the redevelopment and 
operation of the Maryland House and Chesapeake House, the two 
travel plazas that the Authority owns along I-95.  The travel pla-
zas have staggered closures during the period of redevelopment 
and both new facilities will be operational in late 2014.  Addi-
tional information on this service concession arrangement can be 
found in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

The Authority’s finances are accounted for as a proprietary-
type enterprise fund using the accrual basis of accounting, similar 
to a private business entity.   Authority revenues are held sepa-
rately from State’s General Fund and Transportation Trust Fund. 
The disposition of revenues is governed by a Trust Agreement be-
tween the Authority and its Trustee, for the benefit of bondhold-
ers. Nearly three-quarters of the Authority’s revenues come from 
tolls collected at its eight toll facilities.  Revenues from all facilities 
are pooled together to fund operations, capital projects, and debt 
service on revenue bonds issued by the Authority to help pay for 
its capital program.  

OR  G ANI   Z ATIONAL        STRU    C TUR   E

The Maryland Transportation Authority Board serves as the 
policy-setting, decision-making and governing body responsible 
for all actions taken by the Authority.  The group consists of eight 
Members, appointed by the Governor with the advice and con-
sent of the Maryland Senate, and the Secretary of Transportation, 
who serves as Chairman.  The composition of the Board must 
reflect the racial, gender and geographic diversity of the State and 
must include expertise in structural engineering, transportation 
planning, land use planning and finance.  Appointments are for 
staggered four-year terms and may not extend beyond three con-
secutive terms.

The day-to-day operations of the Authority are led by the Ex-
ecutive Secretary, who is appointed by the Board, and the Deputy 
Executive Secretary and are supported by an Executive Manage-
ment Team and other Division Directors.  The Executive Man-
agement Team includes the Executive and Deputy Executive Sec-
retaries; Principal Counsel; Chief Administrative Officer; Chief 
Financial Officer; Chief Information Officer; Chief Engineer; 
Chief of Police; Equal Opportunity Officer; Coordinator for the 
Intercounty Connector and Special Projects; and  the Directors of 
Operations; Procurement; Strategic Development; Environment, 
Safety, and Risk Management; Civil Rights and Fair Practices; 
Capital Planning; Communications; and Office of Audits.

Governor Harry W. Nice Memorial Bridge
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MA  J OR   DI  V ISIONS       O F  TH  E  AUTHORITY       

The work of the Authority is handled by its 1,789 dedicated 
employees.  Employees work in the following functional areas, 
with the largest number of employees in the Division of Opera-
tions and the Maryland Transportation Authority Police.

Division of Finance: Finance is responsible for all financial 
and accounting services for the Authority.  This includes over-
seeing the investment of all Authority funds; reviewing and pro-
cessing the payment of all Authority expenses; preparing and 
maintaining all financial records, reports and statistics; and es-
tablishing procedures and methods for monitoring the collection, 
safeguarding, and deposit of all toll revenue.

Division of Capital Planning: Capital Planning develops and 
continually assesses short- and long-term capital planning activi-
ties, develops funding strategies for the capital program and coor-
dinates legislative and public outreach activities.

Division of Strategic Development: Strategic Development 
provides overall direction and management for the development 
of new facilities, projects, partnerships, and ventures for the Au-
thority. The Division is also responsible for the implementation of 
the Authority’s strategic and business plans.

Division of Engineering & Construction Management: 
This Division provides overall direction and management 
of the design, construction and contract maintenance of the  
Authority’s facilities.  

Office of Environment, Safety, and Risk Management: This 
Office is responsible for the safety of employees, risk manage-
ment, and environmental compliance programs.

Maryland Transportation Authority Police: The Authority 
Police are responsible for law enforcement activities at all of the 
Authority’s facilities.  The Police also provide law enforcement 

services at the Baltimore/Washington International Thurgood 
Marshall Airport and at the Port of Baltimore.  In 2012, the Police 
achieved the Tri-Arc Award from the Commission on Law En-
forcement Accreditation for having concurrent accreditation for 
their law enforcement, communications and training units.

Division of Operations: Operations oversees all bridges, tun-
nels and turnpikes under the jurisdiction of the Authority. Its 
functions include the operation, management and maintenance of 
the Authority’s facilities; traffic management; E-ZPass operations; 
and the collection, disposition and safeguarding of toll revenue.

Division of Civil Rights and Fair Practices: This Division is 
responsible for the development, oversight and administration 
of the Minority Business Enterprise, Small Business Reserve, 
and Veteran Small Business Enterprise Programs, as well as  
the implementation and development of the Title VI Program at  
the Authority.  

Office of Legal Counsel: The Maryland Office of the Attorney 
General assigns staff to provide legal counsel and representation 
for the Authority.

Division of Communications: Communications manages and 
markets the Authority’s public image. The Division serves as the 
official voice of the Authority for the media and the public. 

Office of Audits: The Office of Audits is responsible for pro-
viding independent and objective approaches to improving the 
effectiveness of the Authority’s management and internal controls.

Division of Procurement: Procurement is responsible for all 
contractual agreements for the Authority.

Office of Human Resources and Workforce Development: 
This Office is responsible for employee relations, recruitment, 
compensation and training.

Division of Information Technology: The Division of Informa-
tion Technology is responsible for the planning, implementation 
and support of the Authority’s computer and electronic informa-
tion system infrastructure.

Office of Asset Control and Damage Recovery: This Office 
manages the tracking, inventorying, safeguarding and disposal of 
the Authority’s property and equipment and provides oversight of 
the collection of monies owed to the Authority from responsible 
parties who cause damage to Authority facilities.

Patapsco Avenue Bridge Decking
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O u r  F a c i l i t i e s

Vital Links in Maryland’s Transportation Network

Thomas J. Hatem Memorial Bridge (US 40)
The oldest of the MDTA’s facilities, this 1.4-mile, four-lane bridge opened 
in August 1940. It spans the Susquehanna River on US 40 between  
Havre de Grace and Perryville in northeast Maryland. Tolls are collected in 
the eastbound direction only.

FY 2013 traffic volume, eastbound – 4.6 million vehicles

FY 2013 toll revenue – $7.9 million

FY 2013 revenue as a percentage of total toll revenue – 1.7%

Change in revenue from FY 2012 – $2.7 million
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John F. Kennedy Memorial Highway (I-95)
Opened in November 1963, the John F. Kennedy Memorial Highway is a 
50-mile section of I-95 from the northern Baltimore City line to Delaware. 
Tolls are collected in the northbound direction only at the toll plaza located 
one mile north of the Millard E. Tydings Memorial Bridge over the Susque-
hanna River in northeast Maryland.

FY 2013 traffic volume, northbound – 14.6 million vehicles

FY 2013 toll revenue – $123.0 million

FY 2013 revenue as a percentage of total toll revenue – 27.0%

Change in revenue from FY 2012 – $8.1 million

Fort McHenry Tunnel (I-95, I-395)
The largest underwater highway tunnel, as well as the widest vehicular 
tunnel ever built by the immersed-tube method, the Fort McHenry Tun-
nel opened to traffic in November 1985. The eight-lane tunnel is nearly 
1.4-miles long and connects the Locust Point and Canton areas of Balti-
more, crossing under the Patapsco River, just south of historic Fort McHen-
ry. The tunnel is a vital link in I-95, the East Coast’s most important in-
terstate route. Including the tunnel and approach roadways, the facility is 
approximately 10.3 miles in length.

FY 2013 traffic volume – 43.6 million vehicles

FY 2013 toll revenue – $136.9 million

FY 2013 revenue as a percentage of total toll revenue – 30.1%

Change in revenue from FY 2012 – $19.0 million

O u r  F a c i l i t i e s  ( c o n t i n u e d )
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O u r  F a c i l i t i e s  ( c o n t i n u e d )

Francis Scott Key Bridge (I-695)
This outer crossing of the Baltimore Harbor opened in March 1977 as the 
final link in I-695 (the Baltimore Beltway). The 1.7 mile Key Bridge crosses 
over the Patapsco River where Francis Scott Key was inspired to write the 
words of the “Star Spangled Banner.” This facility also includes the Curtis 
Creek Drawbridge. Including the bridge and approach roadways, the facil-
ity is 10.9 miles in length.

FY 2013 traffic volume – 10.9 million vehicles

FY 2013 toll revenue – $29.2 million

FY 2013 revenue as a percentage of total toll revenue – 6.4%

Change in revenue from FY 2012 – $3.6 million

Baltimore Harbor Tunnel (I-895)
The 1.4 mile, four-lane tunnel opened in November 1957. Designated 
I-895, the facility crosses under the Patapsco River and connects major 
north/south highways and many arterial routes in Baltimore City’s indus-
trial sections. Including the tunnel and approach roadways, the facility is 
approximately 17 miles in length.

FY 2013 traffic volume – 24.0 million vehicles

FY 2013 toll revenue – $52.5 million

FY 2013 revenue as a percentage of total toll revenue – 11.5%

Change in revenue from FY 2012 – $4.1 million
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O u r  F a c i l i t i e s  ( c o n t i n u e d )

Intercounty Connector (ICC)/MD 200
The Intercounty Connector (ICC)/MD 200 links I-270/I-370 in Montgom-
ery County and I-95 in Prince George’s County. The ICC is the MDTA’s 
first all-electronic, variably priced toll facility. The first segment between 
I-370 at Shady Grove and MD 97 in Rockville/ Olney opened in February 
2011, with the segment to I-95 in Laurel opening in November 2011. Tolls 
are paid at highway speeds via E-ZPass® and video tolling as vehicles pass 
beneath tolling structures.

FY 2013 traffic volume – 17.2 million vehicles

FY 2013 toll revenue – $39.6 million

FY 2013 revenue as a percentage of total toll revenue – 8.7%

Change in revenue from FY 2012 – $19.9 million

William Preston Lane Jr. Memorial (Bay) Bridge (US 50/301)
The Bay Bridge crosses the Chesapeake Bay along US 50/301. Its dual 
spans provide a direct connection between recreational and ocean  
regions on Maryland’s Eastern Shore and the metropolitan areas of Balti-
more, Annapolis and Washington, D.C. At four miles, the spans are among  
the world’s longest and most scenic over-water structures. The original 
span opened in July 1952 and provides a two-lane roadway for eastbound  
traffic. The parallel structure opened in June 1973 and has three lanes for 
westbound travelers. During periods of heavy eastbound traffic, one lane of 
the westbound bridge is “reversed” to carry eastbound travelers (“two-way” 
traffic operations). Tolls are collected in the eastbound direction only.

FY 2013 traffic volume, eastbound – 12.7 million vehicles

FY 2013 toll revenue – $52.8 million

FY 2013 revenue as a percentage of total toll revenue – 11.6%

Change in revenue from FY 2012 – $6.4 million
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Governor Harry W. Nice Memorial Bridge (US 301)
Opened in December 1940, this 1.9-mile, two-lane bridge is located on US 
301 and spans the Potomac River from Newburg, Md., to Dahlgren, Va. Pres-
ident Franklin D. Roosevelt participated in the facility’s groundbreaking in 
1939. Tolls are collected in the southbound direction only.

FY 2013 traffic volume, southbound – 3.3 million vehicles

FY 2013 toll revenue – $13.0 million

FY 2013 revenue as a percentage of total toll revenue – 2.9%

Change in revenue from FY 2012 – $1.5 million

O u r  F a c i l i t i e s  ( c o n t i n u e d )
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L o n g - Te  r m  F i n a n c i a l  P l a n n i n g

The Authority utilizes conservative financial forecasting mod-
eling that produces strong debt service coverage and is seen as a 
strength by the credit rating agencies, allowing the Authority to 
maintain strong credit ratings of AA- by Standard & Poor’s and 
Fitch Ratings and Aa3 by Moody’s.  Traffic and revenue forecasts 
are produced by an independent consultant covering a ten-year 
period utilizing conservative elasticity factors and limited long-
term growth on existing facilities to reflect recent experience and 
changing demographics.

These conservative traffic and revenue forecasts are utilized in 
the development of the Authority’s financial forecast.  Additional 
conservatism is built into the financial forecast by assuming that 
the operating and capital budgets will be fully spent, despite re-
cent actual expenses being significantly below budget, and the 
use of assumed interest rates on future borrowings at rates signifi-
cantly higher than current market trends.  The financial forecast 
ensures that the Authority will meet all financial goals and legal 
requirements throughout the forecast period; helps to determine 
the appropriate mix of current year funding and bond proceeds 
to fund the capital program; and identifies the potential need for 
toll rate increases.

As required by statute, the Authority’s six-year financial fore-
cast is provided to the legislature twice per year for informational 
purposes and the timing coincides with the development of the 
annual operating budget by July 1 of each year and with the sub-
mission of the Authority’s annual update to its six-year capital 
program in January.  For internal financial planning purposes, 
additional forecasts are developed for varying planning horizons 
and testing alternative sensitivity cases.  The toll rates for the ad-
ditional sensitivity cases remain unchanged as a means of accu-
rately reflecting the effects of each stress test on the system; how-
ever, in reality, if such unexpected circumstances were to occur, 
the Authority would use its independent toll rate-setting power to 
take prompt mitigating action.

The Authority develops an annual operating budget and is 
required by the Trust Agreement to approve it by July 1 of each 
fiscal year.  Each of the Authority’s department managers contrib-
ute to the development of a preliminary operating budget based 
on the expected staffing and funding level necessary to operate 
the Authority’s facilities and departments.  On a quarterly basis, 
the budget is monitored by division/department and by line 
items for any significant variances from targeted spending lev-
els. The Authority may at any time adopt an amended or supple-
mental budget for the remainder of the then-current fiscal year;  
however, the operating budget historically comes in well below 
budgeted levels. The operating budget is provided to the legislature  
annually for informational purposes but does not require legisla-
tive approval.  

The annual capital budget is developed as part of a six-year 
capital program.  The capital program includes both major and 
minor projects in varying stages of development.  Projects are 
moved from the Development & Evaluation program to the Con-
struction Program as funding becomes available and as design 
work is significantly advanced.  Following several years of sys-
tem enhancements and expansion with the construction of the 
Intercounty Connector and Express Toll Lanes on I-95, the capital 
program is returning to its traditional focus on system preserva-
tion.  Annual inspections on each of the Authority’s facilities help 
to identify needed improvements and prioritize projects.  The FY 
2013 – 2018 capital program includes a $2.3 billion investment 
in the Authority’s facilities.  

Re  l ev  a n t  F i n a n c i a l  P o l i c i e s

The Authority may issue revenue bonds backed by its toll 
revenues.  Statute caps the Authority’s outstanding toll-revenue 
backed to $3.0 billion.  All toll-backed debt must comply with 
the Rate Covenant contained in the Trust Agreement.  The Rate 
Covenant requires that the Authority fix, revise, charge and col-
lect rentals, rates, fees, tolls and other charges and revenues for I-95 Tydings Bridge Pier Cofferdam

Potee Street Bridge Decking
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the use or services of its facilities in order to produce in each bond 
year net revenues in an amount not less than the sum of: (a) 120% 
of the Debt Service Requirement for outstanding bonds; and (b) 
100% of the amount budgeted for deposits to the Maintenance 
and Operations Reserve Account.  Failure to maintain a rate cov-
enant of greater than or equal to 1.0 annually would contractually 
result in the trustee stepping in and taking control of setting toll 
rates sufficient to adhere to this requirement.  MDTA’s historical 
rate covenant has shown strong coverage with operating results 
well above the 1.00 times minimum coverage level.

As part of its Additional Bonds Test, prior to issuing any new 
debt, the Authority must certify that this Rate Covenant has been 
met in the 12 consecutive months out of the proceeding 18 month 
period.  In addition, the Authority must certify on a prospective 
basis that the Rate Covenant will be met in the current bond year, 
and in the 5th complete bond year following the completion date 
of a bond-financed additional project or project improvement.  

The Authority Board has adopted several financial manage-
ment policies for guidance to address the key aspects of fiscal 
planning, issuing debt, approving bond sales, conducting bond 
closing and investment strategies.  These policies require the Au-
thority’s strict adherence to prudent financial management, com-

pliance with Rate Covenants, the setting of liquidity standards 
and debt affordability tests.  The policies are reviewed periodi-
cally and modified as appropriate. These include Board Policies 
on Debt Management, Revenue Bonds, Preparation of Financial 
Forecasts, Investment Management and Revenue Review.

The Debt Management Board Policy provides an administra-
tive policy goal which, in most situations, presents a higher and 
more stringent test of adequacy of revenues than the Rate Cov-
enant.  In this Debt Service Coverage Policy, the Net Revenues 
cannot be less than 2.0 times the Debt Service Requirement of 
current and projected Outstanding Debt.  In addition, to ensure 
that adequate liquidity is available, the Policy requires a balance 
of unrestricted cash balances of the lesser of one times current 
fiscal year toll revenues or $350 million.

Financial Investments of the Authority are substantially con-
trolled by provisions of the Trust Agreement by and between the 
Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon as Trustee.  Invest-
ments are purchased in accordance with bond indenture and In-
vestment Policy limitations.  As required by the bond indenture, 
the investment portfolio is managed by Authority staff with over-
sight by the Investment and Finance Committees.   The Invest-
ment Committee consists of the Executive and Deputy Executive 

Fort McHenry Tunnel Toll Plaza (I-95, I-395)
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Secretaries, Chief Financial Officer, and Deputy Chief Financial 
Officer as voting members and the Director of Treasury and fi-
nancial advisors serving as non-voting members.  The Finance 
Committee is composed of four members of the Authority Board 
and provides reviews at least annually of the Investment Policy 
and at least quarterly of the investment strategy, practices, and 
portfolio performance.  

Authority monies are primarily held in trust accounts cre-
ated under the bond indenture, including various debt service 
accounts, debt service reserves, capital accounts, operating and 
maintenance reserves, and a general account.   Available funds 
are conservatively invested in a variety of instruments includ-
ing money market mutual funds, U.S. Government and Agency 
debentures, municipal bonds, Tier-1 rated corporate commercial 
paper, and the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool.  
Certain accounts are invested on a matched-funding basis, with 
maturities matched to known or projected spending for debt ser-
vice and capital accounts.   Unrestricted funds and reserves are 
managed for total return.

M a j o r  I n i t i a t i ve  s

On September 22, 2011, the Authority approved a toll rate 
increase with phased in implementation over 18 months.  On 
November 1, 2011, the increase for two axle vehicles took effect, 
followed by an increase on January 1, 2012, for vehicles with 
three or more axles.  Fiscal 2013 toll revenues increase as the 
result of annualization of these toll increases, which were in effect 
for only part of fiscal 2012.  Revenues will continue to increase 
in fiscal 2014, resulting from the final phase of the toll increase 
taking effect on July 1, 2013.  

Legislation enacted during 2013 (Chapter 113) establishes the 
use of video tolling and provides enhanced enforcement tools for 
toll violators.  If a driver passes through the Authority’s toll facili-

ties without paying cash or utilizing E-ZPass, the law requires the 
Authority to first send a notice of toll due to the registered owner 
of the vehicle.  If the toll is unpaid after 30 days, a $50 civil citation 
will be issued.  Failure to pay the citation or contest it in District 
Court may lead to the vehicle’s registration being flagged for non-
renewal or suspension or the referral of the unpaid amount to the 
State’s collection unit.  The law also permits the Authority to en-
ter into reciprocal agreements with other states to pursue out-of- 
state violators. Implementation of these new procedures began  
October 1, 2013.

The electronic collection of tolls is already common at the 
Authority’s facilities.  Electronic toll collection has been in place 
since 1999 and 74% of tolls were collected electronically in fiscal 
2013.  The Authority’s six-year capital program includes a proj-
ect to convert two toll facilities to all-electronic tolling.  These 
facilities are the Hatem Bridge (US 40) in northeast Maryland and 
the Francis Scott Key Bridge (I-695) in central Maryland.  These 
facilities have the highest percentage of use of electronic tolling. 

The Authority’s capital program is transitioning from several 
years of system enhancement and expansion to a focus on sys-
tem preservation.  The $2.4 billion Intercounty Connector (ICC) 
is Maryland’s newest toll facility and the first facility where toll 
collection is all-electronic.  Segments of the ICC opened in Feb-
ruary and November 2011, connecting the I-270/I-370 corridor 
in Montgomery County to I-95 in Prince George’s County.  The 
final segment, extending the road from I-95 to US 1, will open 
in Spring 2014.  Also in 2014, construction will be completed 
on the Express Toll Lanes (ETL) on I-95 just north of Baltimore.  
This $1.0 billion project includes the ETL as well as significant 
safety enhancements to I-95.  The ETL will provide new capac-
ity with two additional lanes on I-95 in each direction that run 
parallel to existing general purpose lanes.  Like the ICC, the ETL 
will utilize all-electronic tolling and tolls will vary based on time 

Francis Scott Key Bridge (I-695)

I-895 K-Truss Bridge Redecking
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of day.  Following the completion of these system enhancements, 
the capital program will focus on system preservation of the exist-
ing facilities.

In January 2012, the Authority and Areas USA MDTP, LLC 
entered into a public-private partnership for the redevelopment 
of the Chesapeake and Maryland Houses, the two travel plazas 
that the Authority owns along I-95.  Areas will invest $56 mil-
lion in the redevelopment of the facilities and will operate and 
maintain the facilities through 2047.  The State retains ownership 
and oversight of the travel plazas, while receiving revenue over 
the course of the agreement estimated at more than $400 mil-
lion.  The Maryland House has been closed since September 2012 
for reconstruction while the Chesapeake House remains open to 
provide service to the traveling public.  The Chesapeake House 
will close for reconstruction once the Maryland House is ready to 
reopen.  Both travel plazas are contractually required to reopen 
by September 2014.

Maryland’s public-private partnership program received a 
major boost in 2013 with the passage of legislation (Chapter 5 
of 2013) encouraging the use of public-private partnerships and 
establishing a process and structure for such partnerships to take 
place.  As required by the legislation, the Authority is developing 
regulations to implement the legislation and is evaluating how 
public-private partnerships may further enhance the State’s trans-
portation goals.

In addition to establishing a process for the development and 
structuring of public-private parternships, the law also creates 
greater transparency in the process by requiring notice to the pub-
lic at several points in the process and the posting of certain docu-

ments on the agency or project website.  Embracing this spirit 
of openness and transparency, during fiscal 2013, the Authority 
made significant improvements to its website to provide a wealth 
of information to potential investors in the Authority’s bonds and/
or to the general public.  The website, accessible at http://www.
mdta.maryland.gov, provides information on toll rates, the facili-
ties, minutes of the Authority Board and committee meetings,  
annual reports, audited financial statements, financial forecasts, 
operating and capital budgets, traffic and revenue reports, finan-
cial management policies, debt capacity and affordability, and 
much more.  The Authority also provides raw data on Governor 
Martin O’Malley’s Open Data website so that the public may ana-
lyze data on its own.

E c o n o m i c  O u t l o o k

The Authority’s facilities are located primarily in the affluent 
Baltimore and Washington metropolitan areas and provide a cen-
tral transportation link to a growing affluent population in an area 
with a strong economy.  The Authority has a mature, multi-asset 
tolling system anchored by academic research, professional ser-
vice industries, and vital government installations.  Demand on 
the system is therefore less vulnerable to economic cycles and toll 
rates are more affordable to the higher income user base.  Several 
of the Authority’s facilities cross major waterways with few or no 
reasonable alternatives and benefit from the location of the Port 
of Baltimore, which necessitates truck traffic using the facilities.  
Additionally, the system has few competing facilities or modes of 
transportation and the State has no active plans to develop proj-
ects that would dilute the demand for the Authority’s facilities.

Maryland’s diverse economy includes professional, business, 
education, and health services sectors as the largest employers.  
The government sector employment, including both state and 
federal, accounts for approximately 20% of employment.  While 
a majority is state and local government employment, federal 
government employment represents a higher proportion in Mary-
land than in other states.  Favorably, federal employment in the 
state is relatively diverse with concentrations in health care, the  
sciences, and intelligence, which may help mitigate some risks  
of downsizing. 

Due to a diverse economic base and proximity to federal jobs, 
unemployment in Maryland has historically been lower than the 
national average and less sensitive to national recessions.  Mary-
land employment grew 0.70% over the twelve-month period 
ended June 2013, while unemployment over the twelve-month 
period ended August 2013 fell to 6.7% from 7.0%.  This com-
pares to national unemployment that fell to 7.3% from 8.1% dur-I-95 Express Toll Lanes at MD 43 Interchange, BGE Gas Line Relocation
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ing the same period.  Unemployment in central Maryland coun-
ties, adjacent to or containing toll facilities, tends to be lower 
than the state average.  In keeping with the growth in the U.S. 
economy overall, Maryland is expected to continue its improving 
employment trend, though the rate of growth may be hampered 
by potential disruptions in the government sector. 

Maryland has exhibited stable population growth that has 
been slightly below the national average over the past ten years.  
Over the ten year period ended in 2012, the state’s population 
rose at an annual rate of 0.76% to 5.9 million, versus a national 
growth rate of 0.86%.

Median incomes in the counties containing toll facilities tend 
to be higher than the state as a whole and well above the national 
average.  Howard, Montgomery, and Anne Arundel counties rank 
among the top 25 counties nationally in terms of median income.  
State wealth and income levels have consistently been well above 
average, with median household income of $71,836 in 2012 rep-
resenting a strong 140% of the national average and ranking the 
state first in the country. This relative income advantage should 
continue to be supported by the highly educated work force.  The 
Authority’s newest toll facility is partly located in Montgomery 

County, which is among the nation’s wealthiest counties. 
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The preparation of this CAFR would not have been possible 
without the dedicated and knowledgeable staff of the Division 
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The successful day-to-day operations of the Authority would 
not be possible without the vision and leadership provided by the 
Authority Board.  We look forward to continuing our progress 
into 2014.

Respectfully Submitted,

Bruce W. Gartner 
Executive Secretary

Jaclyn D. Hartman 
Chief Financial Officer

Baltimore Harbor Tunnel Tunnel Plaza (I-895)

I-895 K-Truss Bridge Redecking
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT   

Board of Trustees 
Maryland Transportation Authority 
Baltimore, Maryland  

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of business-type activities of the Maryland Transportation 
Authority (the Authority), an enterprise fund of the State of Maryland, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the entity’s basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of ma-
terial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit  
opinions.

Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the business-type activities of the Maryland Transportation Authority as of June 30, 2013, and the respec-
tive changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such infor-
mation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the in-
formation for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Maryland Transportation Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Combined Statement of Rev-
enue and Expense for All Toll Facilities and Statements of Traffic Volume and Toll Income and other information such as 
the introductory and statistical sections as outlined in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Combined Statement of Revenue and Expense for All Toll Facilities and Statements of Traffic Volume and Toll In-
come is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including compar-
ing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Combined Statement 
of Revenue and Expense for All Toll Facilities and Statements of Traffic Volume and Toll Income is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical information as listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opin-
ion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30, 2013, on 
our consideration of the Maryland Transportation Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Baltimore, Maryland  
September 30, 2013
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M a n a g eme   n t ’ s  D i s c u s s i o n  a n d  A n a l y s i s

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the Maryland Transportation Authority’s  
(Authority) financial performance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. As you read the MD&A, 2013 refers to the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2013, and 2012 refers to the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. This narrative intends to supplement the Authority’s audited 
financial statements, which are comprised of the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.

F INAN    C IAL    HI  G HLI   G HTS   

•	 Net position increased $167.1 million, or 5.7%, in 2013 as compared to 2012.

•	 As of June 30, 2013, assets exceeded liabilities by $3.1 billion.

•	 As a result of significant infrastructure investment, capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, increased by $245.7 million, or 4.9%, from 2012.

	 Expansion project growth related to the Intercounty Connector (ICC) and Express Toll  
		  Lanes (ETL) on the John F. Kennedy (JFK) Memorial Highway (I-95) totaled $147.0 million  
		  in 2013.  

	 System preservation and restoration of existing facilities totaled $178.4 million in 2013. 

•	 Issued $135.5 million of Baltimore/Washington International Thurgood Marshall Airport (BWI Marshall Airport) Passenger 
Facility Charge Revenue Bonds (Qualified Airport Bonds – AMT) Series 2012B and Variable Rate Series 2012C to 
finance a portion of certain airport related projects located at BWI Marshall Airport.

•	 For the year ending June 30, 2013, the Authority had total bonded debt outstanding of $3.4 billion, which includes $2.3 billion 
in revenue bonds backed by the Authority’s toll revenues, and $1.1 billion in debt backed by sources external to the Authority.   
The Authority’s revenue bonds remain below the statutory cap of $3.0 billion and have strong rate covenant coverage of 2.07 
versus a 1.0 requirement. 

•	 Operating revenues increased in 2013 due to annualization of a new toll rate structure for cars and commercial vehicles imple-
mented in 2012.  Further increases will take place in 2014 as the result of phased implementation of the toll rate structure.

•	 Legislation enacted during 2013 provides enhanced enforcement tools for toll violators.  The new law, to be fully implemented in 
October 2013, allows for the non-renewal or suspension of a vehicle’s registration or referral to Maryland’s Central Collection Unit 
for failure to pay a toll.

O V E R V I E W  O F  TH  E  F INAN    C IAL    STAT    E M E NTS 

The Authority is an independent agency of the State of Maryland that was created to manage the State’s toll facilities as well as to  
finance new revenue-producing transportation projects on behalf of the Maryland Department of Transportation (MDOT). The  
Authority is a non-budgeted agency that relies solely on revenues generated from its transportation facilities. Disposition of these 
revenues is governed by a Trust Agreement between the Authority and its Trustee. The Authority is accounted for as a proprietary- 
type enterprise fund using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to a private business entity.

Financial Statements
The financial statements included in this report are the: Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 

in Net Position; and Statement of Cash Flows. These statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Statement of Net Position
The Statement of Net Position depicts the Authority’s financial position as of a point in time and includes all assets and liabilities of 

the Authority.  The net position represents the residual interest in the Authority’s assets after liabilities and deferred inflows are deducted 
and are displayed in three components: 1) Net Investment in capital assets 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Intercounty Connector (ICC)/MD 200
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M a n a g eme   n t ’ s  D i s c u s s i o n  a n d  A n a l y s i s

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position reports the revenues and expenses of the Authority that are 

used to measure the success of the Authority’s operations for a given period of time and how the Authority has funded its operations.

Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows reconciles the changes in cash and cash equivalents with the noncapital financing, capital financing, 

and investing activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of the data provided 

in the financial statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found on pages 40 to 72 of this report.

F INAN    C IAL    ANALYSIS      

Financial Position
Table 1 is a summarized version of the Statement of Net Position for the years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012. The table reflects the 

Authority’s overall change in financial resources and claims on those resources. The majority of the Authority’s assets consist of cash, 
investments, direct financing lease receivables and capital assets. Liabilities primarily represent accounts payable, accrued liabilities and 

bonds payable.

Table 1: Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 
(In Thousands)

	 For the Years Ending June 30
	 2013	 2012*	 Variance	 % Change

Current Assets	  $    886,270 	  $     940,787 	  $ (54,517)	 -5.8%

Noncurrent Assets	  637,311 	  610,519 	  26,792 	 4.4%

Capital Assets, net	  5,227,262 	  4,981,564 	  245,698 	 4.9%

Total Assets	  $ 6,750,843 	  $ 6, 532,870 	  $ 217,973 	 3.3%

		    	

Current Liabilities	  $396,467 	  $359,711 	  $   36,756 	 10.2%

Long-Term Bonds Payable	  3,241,285 	  3,235,799 	  5,486 	 0.2%

Other Long-Term Liabilities	  26,773 	  21,108 	  5,665 	 26.8%

Total Liabilities	  $ 3,664,525 	  $  3,616,618 	  $   47,907 	 1.3%

				       

Deferred Inflow of Resources	  3,000 	  -   	  3,000 	 100.0%

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets	  $ 2,396,410 	  $  2,313,587 	  $82,823 	 3.6%

Restricted	  132,747 	  148,775 	  (16,028)	 -10.8%

Unrestricted	  554,161 	  453,890 	  100,271 	 22.1%

Total Net Position	  $ 3,083,318 	  $  2,916,252 	  $ 167,066 	 5.7%

* For comparison purposes, FY 2012 has been reclassified to conform to GASB No. 62 and GASB No. 63.  

   See Note 1, New Accounting Pronouncements
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M a n a g eme   n t ’ s  D i s c u s s i o n  a n d  A n a l y s i s

Current Assets
Current assets decreased by $54.5 million, or 5.8%, in 2013 as compared to 2012. The decrease in 2013 occurred primarily due to 

the Authority’s investments decreasing by $77.3 million, or 10.9%.  This decrease was offset by an increase in cash and cash equivalents 
of $12.9 million, or 7.4%. The decrease in investments was driven by increased capital spending on the infrastructure of the Authority.  
The increase in cash and cash equivalents was primarily due to the new toll structure on Authority facilities which increased E-ZPass 
reciprocity.

Noncurrent Assets
Noncurrent assets increased by $26.8 million, or 4.4%, in 2013 as compared to 2012. The increase is primarily the result of an 

increase in direct financing lease receivables in the amount of $26.8 million, or 8.7%, which is largely due to an increase of $37.3 mil-
lion in debt service payments due to the issuance of $135.5 million in conduit debt for the Maryland Aviation Administration (MAA).  

Capital Assets, net
Table 2 is a summarized version of the Authority’s ending capital assets, net of depreciation, for the years ending June 30, 2013 and 

2012. Investment in capital assets include land and improvements, construction in progress, buildings, machinery and equipment, 
highways, bridges, and tunnels. Details of capital assets, additions, and depreciation are included in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Capital Assets, net of depreciation, increased by $245.7 million, or 4.9%, in 2013 as compared to 2012. The Authority’s capital assets 
were principally funded by revenue bond proceeds, Authority revenues, and contributions from the State of Maryland. The increase in 
2013 is primarily attributable to the ICC and ETL projects. The ICC is an 18 mile, 6-lane; congestion-managed toll highway located in 
the Maryland suburbs of Washington DC.  It is the eighth toll facility owned and operated by the Authority. The ETL is an expansion 
project designed to relieve congestion and improve interchanges on the JFK Memorial Highway (I-95) north of Baltimore. During 2013, 
ICC and ETL expenses totaled $68.5 and $78.5 million, respectively.  Total depreciation expense in 2013 increased by 116% when com-
pared to the prior fiscal year.  This increase is mainly attributed to the capitalization of ICC contracts in 2012 and subsequent deprecia-
tion in 2013, which accounted for 83% of the increase in depreciation expense.  Additionally, the Authority invested $178.4 million in 
preservation and restoration projects throughout its other facilities.

Table 2: Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
(In Thousands)

For the Years Ending June 30

	 2013	 2012
Non-depreciated:		

   Land 	  $     387,239 	  $     383,687

   Construction in progress	  1,217,254 	  1,007,407

		  	 1,604,493 	  1,391,094

Depreciated:

   Infrastructure	  3,558,225 	  3,532,211

   Buildings	  38,413 	  34,436

   Machinery and Equipment and Vehicles	  26,131 	  23,823

Total Capital Assets, Net	  $  5,227,262 	 $  4,981,564
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M a n a g eme   n t ’ s  D i s c u s s i o n  a n d  A n a l y s i s

Current Liabilities
Current liabilities increased by $36.8 million, or 10.2%, in 2013 as compared to 2012. The majority of the increase is due to increases 

in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and the current portion of bonds payable, which totaled $28.7 million and $11.9 million, 
respectively.  This was offset by intergovernmental payables, which decreased by $7.4 million.  The increase in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities is the result of increased construction spending.  Bonds payable increased due to the issuance of $135.5 million in 
conduit debt for MAA in 2013.  Intergovernmental payables decreased due to increased construction spending from passenger facility 
charges at BWI Marshall Airport.

Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities increased by $11.2 million, or 0.3%, in 2013 as compared to 2012. The change is attributed to an increase in 

the noncurrent portion of bonds payable in the amount of $5.5 million and in contractor deposits and retainage in the amount of $5.7 
million.  The noncurrent portion of bonds payable primarily increased due to the issuance of $135.5 million of BWI Thurgood Marshall 
Airport Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds (Qualified Airport Bonds – AMT) Series 2012B and Variable Rate Series 2012C to 
finance a portion of certain airport related projects located at BWI Marshall Airport.  Details of bonds payable are included in Note 5 
to the financial statements.  Contractor deposits and retainage fluctuate based on the number of active construction contracts and the 
percentage of completion for these contracts.

For the year ending June 30, 2013, the Authority had total bonded debt outstanding of $3.4 billion. The debt is comprised of revenue 
bonds, Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle (GARVEE) bonds, and conduit debt. The revenue bonds are backed by the Authority’s toll 
revenue. The GARVEE and conduit bonds are backed by sources external to the Authority. 

Table 3 is a summary of outstanding debt.

The Authority’s revenue bonds have underlying ratings of AA- by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Fitch Ratings and Aa3 rat-
ing by Moody’s Investors Service. Pursuant to legislation, the Authority may issue revenue bonds secured by toll revenues in any amount 
provided the aggregate outstanding balance does not exceed $3.0 billion as of fiscal year end. The Authority is subject to the provisions 
and restrictions of the Trust Agreement with the Trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, dated as of September 1, 2007, as amending and 
supplemented. The Authority’s rate covenant coverage for 2013 as defined by the Trust Agreement was 2.07 versus a 1.00 requirement.

Table 3: Outstanding Bond Debt
(In Thousands)

For the Years Ending June 30

	 2013	 2012
Transportation Facility Revenue	 $ 2,295,512 	  $ 2,321,595 

GARVEE	 479,035	  539,355

Conduit Debt:

BWI Airport PFC Revenue	 195,780	  72,905 

BWI Airport Rental Car Facility	 99,040	  101,440 

BWI Airport Parking Garage Revenue	 182,025	  190,560 

Metrorail Parking Revenue	 31,860	  33,175 

Calvert Street Parking Revenue	 19,995	  20,670 

Deferred Amount on Refunding	 (11,423)	 (12,787)

Unamortized Premium	 73,751	 81,321 

Total Bond Debt, Net	 $ 3,365,575 	  $ 3,348,234
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Deferred Inflow of Resources
The Authority reported $3 million as a deferred inflow of resources in 2013 on the Statement of Net Position; this amount repre-

sents a onetime payment from Areas, USA, the company developing the Maryland travel plazas. See Note 4 for additional information 
concerning service concession agreements. 

Total Net Position
Net position increased by $167.1 million, or 5.7%, in 2013 

as compared to 2012. In 2013, increases of $82.8 million in net 
investment in capital assets and $100.2 million in unrestricted 
assets were offset by a decrease of $16 million in restricted assets.  
The increase in net investments in capital assets, resulted from the 
Authority’s use of cash reserves in the restoration of existing facili-
ties in excess of capital assets acquired through the use of bond 
proceeds less unspent bond proceeds and the change in deprecia-
tion between 2013 and 2012.  As the Authority spent down bond 
proceeds in 2013, restricted assets decreased while unrestricted 
assets increased.

Results of Operations
Table 4 is a summarized version of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the years ending June 30.

Table 4: Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
(In Thousands)

For the Years Ending June 30

	 	 2013	 2012	 % Change
Operating revenues	  $617,334 	  $578,197 	 6.8%

Operating expenses	  346,485 	  309,073 	 12.1%

Net operating revenue	  270,849 	  269,124 	 0.6%

Non-operating revenues (expenses)	  (103,783)	  (95,918)	 8.2%

Increase in net position	  $167,066 	  $173,206 	 -3.5% 

Net Position
For the Years Ending June 30 	

(In Millions)

2013 2012 

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

Net Investment in Capital Assets	 Restricted	 Unrestricted

	 $554 	 $454
	 $133	 $149

	$2,396	 $2,314
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Operating Revenues
Operating revenues increased by $39.1 million, or 6.8%, in 2013 as 

compared to 2012.  The increase from 2012 is attributed to toll revenues 
and E-ZPass revenues of $65.3 million and $3.9 million respectively.   
This is offset by a decrease in intergovernmental revenue, concession  
revenue and other revenue of $23.8 million, $3.5 million and $2.8 mil-
lion, respectively.  Toll revenue and E-ZPass revenue increased due to  
annualization of the new toll structure implemented by the Authority in 
2012.  Intergovernmental revenue primarily decreased as a result of a de-
crease of $46.2 million in funding from the State of Maryland for the ICC in 
2013 in accordance with the statutory payment schedule and a $6.0 million  
decrease in funding from MDOT due to the expiration of a grant funding 
agreement with MDOT.  This decrease in intergovernmental revenue was off-
set by an increase of $28.4 million from the Federal Highway Administration 
for the debt service payments for the GARVEE Series 2007 and 2008 bonds.  
Concession revenue decreased primarily due to the temporary closure of the 
Maryland House travel plaza during reconstruction.  Other revenue primarily 
decreased as a result of reduced insurance recoveries.

Traffic Volume and Revenue Comparison
A direct correlation exists between traffic volume and toll revenue as shown in the following graph. Despite a decrease of 1.9% in 

traffic volume in 2013 as compared to 2012, toll revenue increased by 16.2%.  Toll revenue increased due to annualization of a new toll 
structure initiated by the Authority in 2012 and the ramp-up of traffic on the ICC.  The new toll structure was implemented in Novem-
ber 2011 for passenger traffic and January 2012 for commercial traffic.  The ICC opened to traffic in 2012.  In 2013, traffic volume on 
the ICC increased 32.6% as compared to 2012 due to the ramp up in traffic for the new facility, while traffic volume at existing facilities 
decreased by 5.6% due to the new toll structure.
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Revenue 

4%

Sources of Revenue 
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Operating Expenses
Operating expenses increase by $37.4 million, or 12.1%, which 

is the net result of an increase of $24.5 million in Collection, Patrol 
and Maintenance expenses, an increase of $55.8 million in deprecia-
tion and a decrease of $43.3 million in Major Repairs and Replace-
ments. The $24.5 million increase in Collection, Patrol and Mainte-
nance is the result of increases of $11.5 million for on-call construction 
costs, $7.2 million for salaries and benefits, $3.0 million for inspec-
tions costs, $2.2 million for professional services and $1.3 million  
for E-ZPass costs.  In 2013, the Authority recategorized certain  
expenses from Major Repairs and Replacements into Collection, Pa-
trol and Maintenance and Capital Assets.  Therefore, the decrease 
in Major Repairs and Replacements is offset by increases in these 
categories.  The increase in depreciation is largely associated with  
the ICC as explained previously in the Capital Assets section.

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses
Non-operating revenues and expenses increased by $7.9 million, or 8.2%, in 2013 as compared to 2012.  Increases of $6.7 mil-

lion caused by loss on disposals and $8.7 million on interest expense were offset by a $5.8 million decrease in investment revenue and  
restricted interest income on investments. Loss on disposals increased due to the replacement of major Authority infrastructure that 
was not fully depreciated. Interest expense increased primarily due to a decrease in capitalized interest.  Investment revenue and  
restricted interest income on investments declined as a result of lower average investment balances and prevailing interest rates  
during the fiscal year.

Economic Outlook
The Authority’s traffic through its toll facilities has historically demonstrated less elasticity to economic conditions relative to other 

tolling systems nationally.  MDTA benefits from its essential highway, bridge, and tunnel system serving the northeast corridor, as 
well as favorable proximity to government employment and a strong regional economy. The most recent toll increase implemented 
on July 1, 2013 may influence traffic levels in the short-term, but historical data suggests that any dislocations will be short-term and 
traffic growth may resume as a function of external economic factors such as population, employment, fuel prices, and GDP growth.   
The Federal Open Market Committee is forecasting continued GDP growth and declines in unemployment for calendar 2013 and 
2014.  Maryland employment that increased 0.70% over the twelve-month period ended June 2013 may help support traffic levels, 
though traffic is projected to decline in fiscal 2014 as a function of the toll increase and return to a long term growth trend beginning in  
fiscal 2015.  `

Requests For Information
For additional information concerning the Authority, please see the Authority’s website, www.mdta.state.md.us. Financial informa-

tion can be found in the About the Authority section of the website. The Authority’s executive offices are located at 2310 Broening 
Highway, Suite 150, Baltimore, Maryland, 21224, and the main telephone number is 410-537-1000.  

Operating Expenses 
For the Year Ending June 30, 2013

DEPRECIATION
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Assets 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 	 $      75,139 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 	 112,724 

Investments 	 550,228 

Restricted investments 	  82,140 

Intergovernmental receivable 	 4,437 

Inventory 	 5,188 

Accounts receivable 	 17,328 

Accrued interest 	 2,139 

Notes receivable 	 1,674 

Contractor deposits 	 1,313 

Direct financing lease receivable  	 33,960 

	 Total current assets 	 886,270 

Noncurrent Assets 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 	  1,604,493 

Capital assets being depreciated, net of accumulated depreciation 	  3,622,769 

	  Total capital assets 	 5,227,262

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 	 100,717 

Restricted investments 	 168,437 

Notes receivable, net of current portion 	  7,837 

Direct financing lease receivable, net of current portion 	  334,062 

Other assets 	 8,813

Direct financing costs, net of accumulated amortization 	  17,445 

	 Total noncurrent assets 	 5,864,573 

Total Assets 	  $ 6,750,843

Maryland Transportation Authority

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013 
(In Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Liabilities and Net Position

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable & accrued liabilities 		  $    104,130

Intergovernmental payable 		  70,277

Unearned revenue 		  21,957

Accrued interest 		  69,941

Contractor deposits and retainage 		  3,612

Accrued annual leave 		  432

Accrued workers’ compensation costs		   1,828

Bonds payable 		  124,290

		  Total current liabilities 	 396,467

Noncurrent Liabilities

Contractor retainage, net of current portion 		  8,133

Accrued annual leave, net of current portion 		  8,675

Accrued workers’ compensation costs, net of current portion 		  9,965

Bonds payable, net of current portion 		  3,241,285

		  Total noncurrent liabilities 	 3,268,058

		  Total liabilities 	 3,664,525

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Deferred Service Concession Arrangement Receipts 		  3,000

Net Position

Net Investment in capital assets 		  2,396,410

Restricted for: 
     Debt service 		  110,081

     Capital expenses 		  22,666

		  Total Restricted 	 132,747

Unrestricted		  554,161

	 	 Total Net Position 	 $ 3,083,318

Maryland Transportation Authority

               Statement of Net Position (continued)

June 30, 2013 
(In Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Operating Revenues

Toll 	 $    454,849

Intergovernmental 	 127,660

E-ZPass Fees	 26,333

Concession 	 4,088

Other 	 4,404

Total operating revenue	  617,334

Operating Expenses

Collection, police patrol, and maintenance 	 200,985

Major repairs, replacements, and insurance	  11,633

General and administrative 	 30,124

Depreciation	  103,743

Total operating expenses 	 346,485

Income from operations 	 270,849

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment revenue 	 650

Restricted interest income on investments 	 1,026

Loss on disposal of infrastructure 	 (10,293)

Interest expense 	 (95,166)

Total non-operating revenues & expenses 	 (103,783)

Change in net position 	 167,066

Net Position - Beginning of Year 	 2,916,252

Net Position - End of Year	 $ 3,083,318

Maryland Transportation Authority

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2013 
(In Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from toll collections and E-ZPass	 $  484,286 

Receipts from concessions and other revenue	  11,116 

Receipts from other governmental agencies for services	  128,845 

Payments to employees	  (129,320)

Payments to suppliers	  (91,771)

	 Net cash provided by operating activities	 403,156 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Bond proceeds	 135,470 

Capital debt principal payments	  (25,520)

Direct financing costs	  (1,708)

New direct financing lease	  (135,470)

Payments received on direct financing lease	  100,220 

Net cash used by non capital financing activities	  72,992 

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities

Bond proceeds	  513 

Capital debt interest payments	  (130,625)

Capital debt principal payments	  (86,916)

Purchase of capital assets	  (325,439)

Net cash used in capital financing activities	  (542,467)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from sales of investments	  830,584 

Proceeds from interest income on investments	  5,476 

Purchase of investments	  (783,482)

	 Net cash provided by investing activities	  52,578 

	 Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 	 (13,741)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year	  302,321 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year	  $  288,580 

Supplemental disclosure of significant noncash investing activities -  
change in fair value of investments	  $    (2,041)

Supplemental disclosure of significant noncash capital financing activities- 
construction retainage	 $         320 

Supplemental disclosure of significant noncash financing activities -  
amortization of debt issuance costs and premium	  $    (5,915)

Maryland Transportation Authority

Statement of Cash Flows
June 30, 2013 
(In Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash   
Provided by Operating Activities

Income from operations	  $  270,849 

Depreciation and amortization	  103,743 

Effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities:	
Intergovernmental receivables	  95 

Inventory 	  (396)

Accounts receivable	 (518)

Notes receivable	  1,090 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	  28,718 

Intergovernmental payables	  (7,381)

Deferred  revenue	  3,246 

Accrued annual leave	  208 

Accrued workers’ compensation costs	  502 

Deferred service concession receipts.	  3,000 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	 $  403,156

Maryland Transportation Authority

              Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

June 30, 2013 
(In Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOT   E  1  –  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Legislative Enactment
The Maryland Transportation Authority (Authority) was established by the Maryland General Assembly enactment of Chapter 13 of 

the Laws of Maryland of 1971.  The Authority is part of the primary government of the State of Maryland and is reported as a proprietary 
fund and business-type activity within the State of Maryland’s financial statements.

The legal mandate of the law that establishes the Authority and defines its purpose specified that the Authority was created to man-
age the State’s toll facilities, as well as to finance new revenue-producing transportation projects on behalf of the Maryland Department 
of Transportation. The Authority is responsible for the supervision, financing, construction, operation, maintenance and repair of the 
State’s toll facilities in accordance with an Amending and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of September 1, 2007 (the Trust Agree-
ment) and the Supplemental Trust Agreements dated as of March 1, 2008; April 29, 2008; December 1, 2008; December 1, 2009; July 
1, 2010; and February 1, 2012, relating to the Maryland Transportation Authority - Transportation Facilities Projects Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1992, 2004, 2007, 2008, 2008A, 2009A, 2009B, 2010A, 2010B and the Transportation Facilities Projects Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Series 2012, respectively.

The Authority is responsible for various projects (the Transportation Facilities Projects, as defined under the Trust Agreement), the rev-
enue from which has been pledged to the payment of the toll revenue bonds issued under the Trust Agreement. The Transportation Facili-
ties Projects consist of the following:

•	 Potomac River Bridge - Harry W. Nice Memorial Bridge

•	 Chesapeake Bay Bridge - William Preston Lane, Jr. Memorial Bridge

•	 Patapsco Tunnel - Baltimore Harbor Tunnel

•	 Baltimore Outer Harbor Crossing - Francis Scott Key Bridge

•	 Northeastern Expressway - John F. Kennedy Memorial Highway

•	 Fort McHenry Tunnel

•	 Intercounty Connector (ICC)

In addition to the above facilities, the Authority is permitted to construct and/or operate other transportation facilities projects, the 
revenues from and for which are also pledged to the payment of the bonds issued under the Trust Agreement unless and until, at the 
Authority’s option, such revenue is otherwise pledged. These additional projects (the General Account Projects, as defined under the 
Trust Agreement) currently include the following:

• 	 Susquehanna River Bridge - Thomas J. Hatem Memorial Bridge 

• 	 Masonville Phase I Auto Terminal

• 	 Intermodal Container Transfer Facility

By Maryland statute, the Authority may issue revenue bonds to provide financing for other revenue-producing transportation-related 
projects. These bonds are secured by revenues pledged from the individual projects and are not secured by the toll revenues of the Au-
thority, and are subject to separate trust agreements for each particular project. To date, the Authority has also issued revenue bonds for 
various transportation facilities projects at the Baltimore/Washington International Thurgood Marshall Airport (BWI Marshall Airport) in 
Anne Arundel County, MD; for vehicle-parking facilities projects at certain Metrorail stations operated by the Washington Metropolitan 
Area Transit Authority (WMATA) in Prince George’s County, MD; for a State parking facility in Annapolis, MD; and for the Intercounty 
Connector between the I-270/I-370 and I-95/US 1 in Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties. Therefore, under separate trust agree-

Notes to the Financial Statements
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ments, the Authority has issued Airport Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A and 2012B to refund the previously outstanding Series 
2002A and Series 2002B Airport Parking Revenue Bonds; BWI Consolidated Rental Car Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2002; BWI Vari-
able Rate Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A, 2003B and 2012C; BWI Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012A and 2012B; Lease Revenue Bonds, Metrorail Parking Projects, Series 2004; Lease Revenue Bonds, Calvert Street Parking 
Garage Project, Series 2005; and Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle Bonds GARVEE Series 2007 and Series 2008. 

The State of Maryland prepares a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR).  The Authority is an enterprise fund of the State of 
Maryland and is included in the basic financial statements of the CAFR of the State of Maryland.

Basis of Accounting Presentation
The Authority is accounted for as a proprietary fund engaged in business-type activities.  In accordance with Government Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local 
Governments,” and with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements are prepared 
on the accrual basis of accounting, which requires recognition of revenue when earned and expenses when incurred.  

Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying 
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses
Operating revenues for the Authority are derived from toll revenues and related E-ZPass fees, travel plaza concessions, and intergovernmen-

tal revenues. Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis as earned. Operating revenues consist of tolls collected, concessions from facilities 
along the highways, and all other services rendered. Prepaid electronic tolls are recorded as unearned revenue until utilized or expired. 
Operating expenses include collection fees, maintenance and repairs of facilities, administrative, and depreciation expenses. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash deposited with financial institutions, and investments with original maturities of three 
months or less at the time of purchase. 

Receivables
Receivables include intergovernmental, direct financing lease, and accounts receivable. Intergovernmental receivables represent 

amounts due for police services and rental income. Direct financing lease receivable represents amounts due from obligors on conduit 
debt issued by the Authority. Accounts receivable represents the amounts due primarily from E-ZPass Interagency and concessionaires. 
The Authority uses the allowance method to provide for doubtful accounts based on management’s evaluation of the collectability of 
receivables and past collection history. The Authority determines receivables to be delinquent when they become greater than 90 days 
past due. Receivables are written off when it is determined that amounts are uncollectible.  As of June 30, 2013, management believes 
all receivables are collectible, and, as such, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded.

Investments
Investments are carried at fair value with all income, including unrealized changes in the fair value of investments, reported as interest 

and other investment revenue in the accompanying financial statements.

The Authority’s Trust Agreement defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments for the Authority and conditions 
for making investment transactions. Investment transactions may be conducted only through authorized financial dealers and institutions.

NOT   E  1  –  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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Inventory
Inventory consists primarily of spare parts, salt and supplies carried at cost using a weighted average cost method. The cost of inven-

tory is expensed upon use (consumption method). The Authority analyzes inventory for impairment on a periodic basis. For the year 
ending June 30, 2013, the Authority determined no inventory was impaired, and, as such, no allowance was recorded.

Capital Assets
Capital assets, not being depreciated, consist of land and construction in progress which are recorded at historical cost. Land is 

determined to have an inexhaustible life. Construction in progress is transferred to a depreciating asset category upon completion of 
the project at which time depreciation will commence. Capital assets, net of depreciation, consist of buildings, building improvements,  
infrastructure, and machinery, equipment and vehicles, which are recorded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The Authority 
defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of $100 or more, and an estimated useful life in excess of 7 years. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized 
as projects are constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction 
phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of 
the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense 
incurred by the Authority during the current fiscal year was $129,461, 
of which $34,295 was included as part of the cost of capitalized assets 
under construction and $95,166 was expensed.

Buildings, building improvements, infrastructure, machinery, ve-
hicles and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method of 
depreciation over the following estimated useful lives:

Restricted Assets
In accordance with the Trust Agreements, the Authority has established and maintains certain restricted accounts. Funds have been 

deposited in these accounts and are restricted for the payment of debt service related to the revenue bonds, major capital replacements, 
improvements, betterments, enlargements or capital additions and conduit related debt.

Compensated Absences
The Authority accrues compensated absences in accordance with GASB No. 16, “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” All full-time 

Authority employees, except contractual employees, accrue annual leave at variable rates based on the number of years employed by the 
State of Maryland. The maximum annual leave an employee can earn per calendar year is 25 days. At the end of each calendar year, an 
employee’s accrued annual leave may not exceed 75 days. All full-time Authority employees, except contractual employees, also accrue 
sick pay benefits.  However, the Authority does not record a liability for accrued sick pay benefits, as neither the State of Maryland nor 
the Authority has a policy to pay unused sick leave when employees terminate from State service.

Arbitrage Payable
Arbitrage rebate requirements under Internal Revenue Code Section 148 apply to tax-exempt bond issuances issued after August 31, 

1986. The law requires the computation and payment of arbitrage profits on unspent proceeds of a bond issue if the current investment 
of these funds yields a higher rate of return than the original bond issue. For the year ending June 30, 2013, there is no arbitrage liability 
due to the Internal Revenue Service.

Net Position
Net position is divided into three categories.  Net investment in capital assets, includes capital assets less accumulated depreciation 

and outstanding principal of the related debt.  Restricted net position reflects restrictions on assets imposed by parties outside the Au-
thority.  Net position restricted for capital expenses includes ICC restricted funds.  Unrestricted net position are total net assets of the 
Authority less net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, and restricted net assets.

Capital Asset Type	U seful Life

Buildings & Building Improvements	 25-75 Years

Infrastructure	 40-75 Years

Machinery, Equipment & Vehicles	 10-20 Years

NOT   E  1  –  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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Deferred Financing Costs	
Debt costs, which include underwriting, legal and other direct costs related to the issuance of debt, and bond premiums are amor-

tized to interest expense over the contractible term of the debt using the effective interest method.  Total amortization of debt issuance 
costs was $1,161 and debt premium was $7,280 for the year ending June 30, 2013.

New Accounting Pronouncements
The Authority has implemented the following GASB issued Statements: 

GASB Issued Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements”. This statement requires gov-
ernments to account for and disclose any service concession agreements (SCA). The Authority has an SCA with Areas, USA to redevelop 
and operate the travel plazas on the John F. Kennedy Highway (I-95).

GASB Issued Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34”.  This 
statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity. This statement also amends 
the criteria reporting component units as if they were part of the primary government.  Lastly, this statement also clarifies the reporting 
of equity interests in legally separate organizations. 

GASB Issued Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB 
and AICPA Pronouncements”.  This statement incorporates into GASB, accounting and financial reporting that is included in the FASB 
Statements and Interpretations, APB Opinions and Research Bulletins, which do not Conflict with or contradict GASB Statements, which 
were issued on or before November 30, 1989. 

GASB Issued Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position”. 
This Statement requires governments to account for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and net position 
elements in Concepts Statements No 4 as it relates to derivatives (GASB No 53) and SCAs (GASB No 60).  This statement also provides 
a new statement of net position format to report all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and 
net position.  The implementation of this Statement is reflected in the format of the Authority’s Statement of Net Position. 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements
In March 2012, GASB issued tatement No. 65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”; GASB issued Statement No. 66, 

“Technical Corrections-2012-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62”.  These statements will be effective for the Authority for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. 

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67, “Financial Reporting for Pension Plans-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25” and 
GASB issued Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27”, these state-
ments will be effective for the Authority for fiscal years ending June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2015, respectively.  The Authority will imple-
ment these statements as of their effective dates.

In January 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 69, “Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations”. This Statement 
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of government operations.  
This Statement will become effective for reporting periods ending June 30, 2015. This Statement is not expected to have an impact on 
the Authority.

In April 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 70, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees”.  This State-
ment requires a government that extends a nonexchange financial guarantee to recognize a liability when qualitative factors and histori-
cal data, if any, indicate that it is more likely than not that the government will be required to make a payment on the guarantee.  This 
Statement will become effective for reporting periods ending June 30, 2014.  This Statement is not expected to have an impact on the 
Authority as it currently makes no such financial guarantees.

The Authority has not completed the process of evaluating the impact that will result from adopting GASB statement No. 65,  
No. 66 and No. 67 and, therefore, is unable to disclose the impact that adopting these statements will have on the Authority’s  
financial position.

NOT   E  1  –  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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NOT   E  2  –  Depos i ts  and  Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the year ending June 30, 2013, carrying amounts and bank balances of cash on deposit with financial institutions were $26,465 

and $21,710, respectively. Cash on hand totaled $585.

Custodial credit risk – deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not 
be returned. Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are 1) un-
collateralized, 2) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or 3) collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s name. The Authority’s Trust Agreement requires 
the financial institutions to provide collateral that has a market value that exceeds the amount by which a deposit exceeds the deposit 
insurance. 

Federal depository insurance covers the Authority’s deposits with a financial institution up to specified limits, and the remaining 
balance is collateralized with securities that are held by the State of Maryland’s agent in the State’s name. 

For the year ending June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of cash invested in money market mutual funds was $261,530.

Custodial credit risk – investments. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority 
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment 
securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, not registered in the name of the government, or held by 
either (a) the counterparty or (b) the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s name. The Authority’s Trust 
Agreement requires all investments to be registered in the Authority’s name.  

Credit risk.  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The Authority’s 
Trust Agreement allows the Authority to invest in money market mutual funds rated AAAm or Aaa-mf. As of June 30, 2013, the money 
market mutual funds held by the Authority were rated AAAm.  

Investments
For the year ending June 30, 2013, the Authority’s investments and quality ratings consisted of the following:

Interest rate risk.  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. This 
risk is higher in debt securities with longer maturities.  The Authority’s Investment Policy limits investment maturities by fund in order to 
minimize interest rate risk and match maturities with expected funding needs. As a means of limiting its exposure to market value fluc-
tuation, the Authority has limited investments in the Operating and Bond Funds to one year. The Operating Reserve Fund, Maintenance 
and Operations Fund, Capital Fund, and General Fund are limited to five years. The Debt Service Reserve Fund is limited to 15 years.

	I nvestment Maturities (in Years)	 Credit Ratings

Investment Type 	 Fair Value 	 Less Than 1 	 1-5 	 6-10 	 Ratings 	 NRSRO

U.S. Agencies 	 $ 736,283 	 $ 212,664 	 $ 523,619 	 $           -	 AA+ 	 S&P

SBA Pool Securities (2)	 4,650	  -	  4,650	 -	        Not Rated

Municipal Bonds 	 59,872 	 - 	 49,252 	 10,620 	 AAA 	  Multiple(1)

	 $ 800,805 	 $ 212,664 	 $ 577,521	  $ 10,620

(1)	 All municipal bond holdings have triple-A credit ratings from at least two Nationally Recognized 

	 Statistical Recognized Rating Organizations (NRSROs).

(2)	 Small Business Administration - Federally guaranteed
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Credit risk.  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The Authority’s 
policy allows for investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations of U.S. agencies; repurchase 
agreements secured by U.S. Treasury Obligations or Federal Agency Obligations; bankers’ acceptances issued by a domestic bank or a 
federally chartered domestic office of a foreign bank with the short-term paper rated no lower than P-1 by Moody’s Investor Services and 
A-1 by S&P; and municipal securities in the highest rating category by at least two NRSROs.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment 
in a single issuer.  The Authority does not place a limit on the amount by issuer of U.S. Government Agency investments.  The Author-
ity’s Investment Policy limits both commercial paper and municipal bond credit exposure to 20% of investments per sector, with single 
issuer exposures limited to 5%.  SBA Pool securities are limited to 5% of investments and 0.5% per issue.  The issuing commercial paper 
corporation must have short- and long-term credit ratings from any two NRSROs of not less than first-tier and single-A, respectively, 
while municipal issues must have triple-A ratings.  

More than 5% of the Authority’s investments are in securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal Na-
tional Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, and Federal Farm Credit Bank representing 22.2%, 20.2%, 16.0%, and 9.2% of 
total investments, respectively.  

NOT   E  3  –  Restr ic ted  Cash  and  Cash  Equ iva lents  and  Restr ic ted  Investments

Restricted assets are to be used to construct projects to be leased under direct financing lease agreements or to retire debt incurred 
to finance the assets leased. 

The Authority’s restricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted investments for the year ending June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital projects 	 $  22,666

Debt service and debt service reserves 	 90,058

Conduit projects:

	 BWI projects 	 97,426

	 WMATA Metrorail projects 	 2,166

	 Calvert Street parking garage project 	 1,125

Total Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 	 $  213,441

Restricted Investments
Debt service and bond reserves 	 82,140

Conduit projects:

	 BWI projects 	 165,524

	 WMATA Metrorail projects 	 2,913

Total Restricted Investments 	 $  250,577

Total Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 	 $  464,018

NOT   E  2  –  Depos i ts  and  Investments  (continued)
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NOT   E  4  –  Cap i ta l  Assets

A summary of the changes in the Authority’s capital assets for the year ending June 30, 2013 is as follows:

	B alance 	A dditions	 Deductions	B alance 
	 June 30 , 2012	 and Transfers	 and Transfers	 June 30, 2013

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land	 $    383,687 	 $       3,552 	 $               - 	 $    387,239

Construction in progress	  1,007,407 	 350,312 	 (140,465) 	 1,217,254

Total non-depreciated 	 1,391,094 	 353,864 	 (140,465) 	 1,604,493

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Infrastructure 	 4,736,522 	 135,222 	 (28,894) 	 4,842,850

Buildings 	 57,485 	 5,243 	 (514) 	 62,214

Equipment 	 41,169 	 5,869 	 (336) 	 46,702

	 4,835,176 	 146,334 	 (29,744) 	 4,951,766

Less Accumulated Depreciation For: 

Infrastructure 	 1,204,311	  98,999 	 (18,685) 	 1,284,625

Buildings 	 23,049 	 1,181 	 (429) 	 23,801

Equipment 	 17,346 	 3,561 	 (336) 	 20,571

	 1,244,706 	 103,741 	 (19,450) 	 1,328,997

Total Depreciated 	 3,590,470 	 42,593 	 (10,294) 	 3,622,769

Capital Assets, Net 	 $ 4,981,564 	 $   396,457 	 $ (150,759) 	 $ 5,227,262



C o m p r e h e n s i v e  A n n u a l  F i n a n c i a l  Re  p o r t  F o r  t h e  F i s ca  l  Yea   r  E n d i n g  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 1 3     x      47

NOT   E S  TO   TH  E  F IN  A N C I A L  ST  A T E M E NTS    ( I n  T h o u s a n d s )

Pollution Remediation Obligations
The Authority has recognized a pollution remediation obligation per GASB Statement No. 49 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Pollution Remediation Obligations” on the Statement of Net Position. A pollution remediation obligation is an obligation to address the 
current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation activities, including pre-cleanup 
activities, cleanup activities, government oversight and enforcement and post-remediation monitoring. Obligating events that initiate the 
recognition of a pollution remediation liability include any of the following:

•	 An imminent threat to public health due to pollution; 

•	 The Authority is in violation of a pollution prevention-related permit or license;

•	 The Authority is named by a regulator as a responsible or potentially responsible part to participate in remediation;

•	 The Authority  is named or there is evidence to indicate that it will be named in a lawsuit that compels participation in remediation 
activities; or 

•	 The Authority voluntarily commences or legally obligates itself to commence remediation efforts.

The pollution remediation obligation is an estimate and subject to change resulting from price increases or reductions, technology 
advances or from changes in applicable laws or regulations. The liability is recognized as it becomes estimable. In some cases, this may 
be at inception. In other cases, components of a liability are recognized as they become reasonably estimable.

The measurement of the liability is based on the current value of outlays to be incurred using the expected cash flow technique. This 
technique measures the sum of probability-weighted amounts in a range of possible potential outcomes.

The Authority’s pollution remediation liability for the year ending June 30, 2013 is estimated to be $350 for the removal of hazardous 
materials at various sites that the Authority owns. 

Service Concession Arrangements
The Authority and Areas USA entered a 35-year Service Concession Agreement (SCA) agreement to redevelop and operate the two 

aging travel plazas along the John F. Kennedy Memorial Highway (I-95).  The structure of the agreement between the Authority and 
Areas, USA is a long term lease and concession.  The Authority retains ownership of the property and assets.  All property and improve-
ments, with the exception of the fueling systems are returned to the Authority at the end of the 35 year lease.  The Authority will derive 
several financial benefits from this agreement including, reduced future operating and capital expenses; debt capacity will be reserved for 
core business activities, and revenue is guaranteed over the life of the agreement.  Areas USA will invest $56,000, which required no pub-
lic subsidy or debt, to redesign and rebuild both the 48-year old Maryland House and the 36-year old Chesapeake House travel plazas.  

Areas USA will operate and maintain the travel plaza through the year 2047.  The expected completion of the redevelopment of 
the Maryland House is December, 2013 and construction of the new Chesapeake House travel plaza will begin in spring 2014.  The 
Authority recognized a deferred inflow of resources of $3,000 from this contract for the year ending June 30, 2013 as reported on the 
Statement of Net Position.

NOT   E  4  –  Cap i ta l  Assets  (continued)



48     x     M A RYL   A ND   TR  A NSPORT      A TION     A UTHORITY      

NOT   E S  TO   TH  E  F IN  A N C I A L  ST  A T E M E NTS    ( I n  T h o u s a n d s )

NOT   E  5  –  LON   G - T E RM   LIA   B ILITI     E S

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ending June 30, 2013, are summarized as follows: 

		B  alance 			B   alance	A mount Due 
		  June 30 , 2012	A dditions	 Reductions	 June 30, 2013	W ithin One Year

Revenue Bonds 	 $ 2,321,595 	 $        513 	 $   (26,596) 	 $ 2,295,512 	 $   27,070

GARVEE Bonds 	 539,355 	 - 	 (60,320) 	 479,035 	 63,260

BWI PFC Bonds 	 72,905 	 135,470 	 (12,595) 	   195,780 	 18,495

BWI Rental Car Facility Bonds	 101,440 	 - 	 (2,400) 	 99,040 	 2,545

BWI Parking Garage Bonds 	 190,560 	 - 	 (8,535) 	 182,025 	 10,845

WMATA Metro-Rail Parking Bonds	 33,175 	 - 	 (1,315) 	 31,860 	 1,380

Calvert Street Parking Garage Bonds	 20,670	  - 	 (675) 	 19,995	 695

Total bonds payable 	 3,279,700 	 135,983 	 (112,436) 	 3,303,247 	 124,290

Unamortized deferred amount on refunding 	 (12,787) 	 - 	 1,364 	 (11,423) 	 -

Unamortized premium 	 81,321 	 3,390 	 (10,960) 	 73,751 	 -

Total bonds payable, net 	 3,348,234 	 139,373 	 (122,032) 	 3,365,575 	 124,290

Contractorsdeposits and retainage 	 12,065 	 13,555 	 (13,875) 	 11,745 	 3,612

Accrued annual leave 	 8,898 	 4,822 	 (4,614) 	 9,107	 432

Accrued workers’ compensation 	 11,291 	 3,366 	 (2,864) 	 11,793 	 1,828

Total 	 	 $ 3,380,488 	 $ 161,116 	 $ (143,385) 	 $ 3,398,220 	 $ 130,162

Revenue Bonds
The Series 1992, 2004, 2007, 2008, 2008A, 2009A, 2009B, 2010A, 2010B and the Series 2012 Revenue Refunding bonds issued  

in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement, and the interest thereon, do not constitute a debt or a pledge of the faith 
and credit of the State of Maryland or the Maryland Department of Transportation (MDOT), but are payable solely from the revenue  
of the Transportation Facilities Projects of the Authority. These bonds carry certain financial covenants with which the Authority  
must comply.

Revenue Bonds outstanding for the year ending June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Series 1992 Revenue Bonds
Capital appreciation bonds maturing in annual installments of original principal $817 to $721 
from July 1, 2013 to July 1, 2015, with approximate yields to maturity ranging at 6.35% 	 $          2,304

Accumulated accreted interest	 6,161

Total 	 8,465

Series 2004 Revenue Bonds
Principal payments ranging from $13,755 to $15,235 from July 1, 2013 to July 1, 2015,  
and from $7,105 to $7,835 from July 1, 2030 to July 1, 2032 with coupons ranging from 5.00%  
to 5.25%, payable semiannually	 65,865

Term bond maturing July 1, 2034 with a coupon of 5.00% 	 16,860

Total 	 82,725
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Series 2007 Revenue Bonds
Principal payments ranging from $1,070 to $12,685 from July 1, 2013 to July 1, 2031,  
with coupons ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%, payable semiannually	 150,030

Term bonds maturing July 1, 2037 and July 1, 2041 with coupons of 4.50% 	 148,945

Total 	 298,975

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds
Principal payments ranging from $9,245 to $31,070 from July 1, 2013 to July 1, 2038,  
with coupons ranging from 4.75% to 5.125%, payable semiannually 	 461,080

Term bond maturing July 1, 2041 with a coupon of 5.00% 	 103,340

Total 	 564,420

Series 2008A TIFIA
The Authority secured a $516,000 revolving loan under the Transportation Infrastructure Finance

and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program for the Intercounty Connector Project. As of June 30, 2013,

$383,978 has been drawn. The loan has a fixed interest rate of 2.56% 	      383,978

Accreted interest is compounded semiannually 	 13,519

Total 	 397,497

Series 2009A Revenue Bonds
Principal payments ranging from $10,355 to $14,570 from July 1, 2016 to July 1, 2023,  
with coupons ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%, payable semiannually 	 98,870

Series 2009B Revenue Bonds
Sinking fund principal payments from July 1, 2024 to July 1, 2029 for the term bond due  
July 1, 2029 with a coupon of 5.788%, and sinking fund principal payments from  
July 1, 2030 to July 1, 2043 for the term bond due July 1, 2043 with a coupon of 5.888% 	 450,515

Series 2010A Revenue Bonds
Principal payments ranging from $4,535 to $5,520 from July 1, 2015 to July 1, 2020, with coupons  
ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%, payable semiannually 	 29,795

Series 2010B Revenue Bonds
Sinking fund principal payments from July 1, 2021 to July 1, 2025 for the term bond due  
July 1, 2025 with a coupon of 5.164%, and sinking fund principal payments from July 1, 2026 to  
July 1,2030 for the term bond due July 1, 2030 with a coupon of 5.604%, and sinking fund principal 
payments from July 1, 2031 to July 1, 2041 for the term bond due July 1, 2041 with a coupon of 5.754% 	 296,640

Series 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds
Principal payments ranging from $3,615 to $6,225 from July 1, 2016 to July 1, 2029,  
with coupons ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%, payable semiannually 	 67,610

Total Outstanding 	 $ 2,295,512

NOT   E  5  –  LON   G - T E RM   LIA   B ILITI     E S  (continued)
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The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
series 1992, 2004, 2007, 2008, 2008A, 2009A, 2009B, 2010A, 2010B and 2012 revenue bonds for the year ending June 30, 2013: 

Series 1992

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $   3,000 	 $           - 	 $     3,000

	 2015 	 2,818 	 182 	 3,000

	 2016 	 2,647 	 353	  3,000

	 Total 	 $   8,465 	 $      535 	 $     9,000

Series 2004

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $ 13,755 	 $     3,846 	 $   17,601

	 2015 	 14,475 	 3,105 	 17,580

	 2016 	 15,235 	 2,344 	 17,579

	 2017 	 - 	 1,963 	 1,963

	 2018 	 - 	 1,963 	 1,963

	 2019-2023 	 - 	 9,815 	 9,815

	 2024-2028	  - 	 9,815 	 9,815

	 2029-2033 	 22,400 	 8,172 	 30,572

	 2034-2035 	 16,860 	 852 	 17,712

	 Total 	 $ 82,725 	 $   41,875 	 $ 124,600

Series 2007

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $ 1,070 	 $   13,748 	 $   14,818

	 2015 	 1,125 	 13,704 	 14,829

	 2016 	 1,175 	 13,658 	 14,833

	 2017 	 6,325 	 13,508 	 19,833

	 2018 	 6,630 	 13,249 	 19,879

	 2019-2023 	 38,175 	 60,986 	 99,161

	 2024-2028 	 48,135 	 50,815 	 98,950

	 2029-2033 	 60,685 	 38,005 	 98,690

	 2034-2038 	 76,530 	 22,232 	 98,762

	 2039-2042 	 59,125 	 4,419 	 63,544

	 Total 	 $ 298,975 	 $ 244,324 	 $ 543,299

NOT   E  5  –  LON   G - T E RM   LIA   B ILITI     E S  (continued)
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Series 2008

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	  Total
	 2014 	 $     9,245 	 $   27,914 	 $      37,159

	 2015 	 9,615 	 27,442 	 37,057

	 2016 	 9,995 	 26,952 	 36,947

	 2017 	 10,395 	 26,442 	 36,837

	 2018 	 10,815 	 25,912 	 36,727

	 2019-2023 	 62,735 	 120,672 	 183,407

	 2024-2028 	 80,190 	 102,901 	 183,091

	 2029-2033 	 103,430 	 80,277 	 183,707

	 2034-2038 	 133,590 	 50,999 	 184,589

	 2039-2042 	 134,410 	 13,872 	 148,282

	 Total 	 $ 564,420 	 $ 503,383 	 $ 1,067,803

Series 2008 A

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	I nterest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $             - 	 $   10,176 	 $   10,176

	 2015	  - 	 10,176 	 10,176

	 2016	  - 	 10,162 	 10,162

	 2017 	 - 	 10,190 	 10,190

	 2018	  8,556 	 10,066 	 18,622

	 2019-2023 	 46,178 	 46,884 	 93,062

	 2024-2028	  52,400 	 40,572 	 92,972

	 2029-2033 	 59,459 	 33,442 	 92,901

	 2034-2038	  67,470 	 25,318 	 92,788

	 2039-2043	  76,560 	 16,111 	 92,671

	 2044-2048	  86,874 	 5,662 	 92,536

	 Total 	 $ 397,497 	 $ 218,759 	 $ 616,256

NOT   E  5  –  LON   G - T E RM   LIA   B ILITI     E S  (continued)
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Series 2009A

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $             - 	 $     4,684 	 $     4,684

	 2015	  - 	 4,684 	 4,684

	 2016	  -	  4,684 	 4,684

	 2017	  10,355 	 4,486 	 14,841

	 2018	  10,870 	 4,029 	 14,899

	 2019-2023	  63,075 	 11,714 	 74,789

	 2024	  14,570 	 364 	 14,934

	 Total 	 $   98,870 	 $   34,645 	 $ 133,515

Series 2009B

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $             - 	 $   26,425 	 $      26,425

	 2015 	 - 	 26,425 	 26,425

	 2016 	 - 	 26,425 	 26,425

	 2017	  - 	 26,425 	 26,425

	 2018	  - 	 26,425 	 26,425

	 2019-2023 	 - 	 132,126 	 132,126

	 2024-2028 	 64,835 	 124,799 	 189,634

	 2029-2033 	 96,225 	 99,774 	 195,999

	 2034-2038 	 116,525 	 68,592 	 185,117

	 2039-2043 	 141,265 	 30,757 	 172,022

	 2044 	 31,665 	 932 	 32,597

	 Total 	 $ 450,515 	 $ 589,105 	 $ 1,039,620
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Series 2010A

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $             - 	 $     1,258 	 $     1,258

	 2015	 - 	 1,258 	 1,258

	 2016	  4,535 	 1,190 	 5,725

	 2017	  4,670 	 1,051 	 5,721

	 2018 	 4,810 	 885 	 5,695

	 2018-2021	  15,780 	 1,209 	 16,989

	 Total 	 $   29,795 	 $     6,851 	 $   36,646

Series 2010B

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $             -	  $   16,727	  $   16,727

	 2015 	 - 	 16,727 	 16,727

	 2016	  - 	 16,727 	 16,727

	 2017 	 - 	 16,727 	 16,727

	 2018	  - 	 16,727 	 16,727

	 2019-2023	  17,035 	 82,762 	 99,797

	 2024-2028	  47,570 	 73,144 	 120,714

	 2029-2033	  54,960 	 58,964 	 113,924

	 2034-2038	  91,525 	 39,643 	 131,168

	 2039-2042	  85,550 	 8,824 	 94,374

	 Total 	 $ 296,640 	 $ 346,972 	 $ 643,612

Series 2012

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $             - 	 $     2,795 	 $     2,795

	 2015	  -	  2,795 	 2,795

	 2016	  - 	 2,795 	 2,795

	 2017	  3,615 	 2,741 	 6,356

	 2018	  3,725 	 2,612 	 6,337

	 2019-2023	  21,270 	 10,271 	 31,541

	 2024-2028	  26,735 	 4,750 	 31,485

	 2029-2030	  12,265 	 373 	 12,638

	 Total 	 $   67,610 	 $   29,132 	 $   96,742
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Grant and Revenue Anticipation Bonds, Series 2007 and Series 2008
During the year ending June 30, 2007, the Authority issued $325,000 of Grant and Revenue Anticipation Bonds (GARVEE Bonds) 

Series 2007 and during the year ending June 30, 2009, the Authority issued $425,000 of GARVEE Bonds Series 2008 to finance the 
Intercounty Connector Project (ICC). The ICC is an 18-mile toll highway located in Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties. The 
True Interest Cost for each series was 4.00% and 4.31%, respectively. The Series 2007 bonds mature in annual installments of original 
principal ranging from $24,345 to $34,390 from March 1, 2008 to March 1, 2019. The Series 2008 bonds mature in annual installments 
or original principal ranging from $30,295 to $48,865 from March 1, 2010 to March 1, 2020.

The GARVEE Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely from certain federal transportation aid available to the 
State of Maryland and other monies included in the trust estate created by the 2007 Trust Agreement, as amending and supplemented 
by a First Supplemental Trust Agreement in 2008, including certain state tax revenues that are pledged. The GARVEE Bonds are  
not general obligations of the Authority or legal obligations of the Maryland State Highway Administration, MDOT, or the State  
of Maryland.

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
Series 2007 GARVEE bonds for the year ending June 30, 2013: 

 

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements excluding unamortized premium on the 
Series 2008 GARVEE bonds for the year ending June 30, 2013: 

Grant and Revenue Anticipation Bonds, Series 2007

	 Year Ending June 30,	 Principal 	 Interest 	  Total
	 2014 	 $   27,015 	 $   9,076 	 $   36,091

	 2015 	 28,335 	 7,757 	 36,092

	 2016 	 29,730 	 6,357 	 36,087

	 2017 	 31,215 	 4,875 	 36,090

	 2018 	 32,760 	 3,331 	 36,091

	 2019 	 34,390 	 1,699 	 36,089

 	 Total 	 $ 183,445 	 $ 33,095 	 $ 216,540

Grant and Revenue Anticipation Bonds, Series 2008

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $   36,245 	 $ 15,122 	 $   51,367

	 2015 	 38,000 	 13,362 	 51,362

	 2016 	 39,930 	 11,433 	 51,363

	 2017 	 41,975 	 9,387 	 51,362

	 2018 	 44,150 	 7,215 	 51,365

	 2019-2020 	 95,290 	 7,437 	 102,727

	 Total 	 $ 295,590 	 $ 63,956 	 $ 359,546

	 Total Outstanding 	 $ 479,035 	 $ 97,051 	 $ 576,086
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Variable Rate Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds (BWI Airport Facilities Projects), Series 2003A
During the year ending June 30, 2004, the Authority issued $69,700 of BWI Airport Facilities Projects, Series 2003A and 2003B 

Bonds to finance a portion of the costs of certain projects (the Airport Facility Projects) located at BWI Marshall Airport.  On September 
11, 2006, the Maryland Aviation Administration (MAA) elected to redeem the 2003 Series B Bonds in the amount of $5,600. The interest 
rates on the bonds are variable and the final weekly reset rate was 0.06% as of June 30, 2013. These bonds mature in annual installments 
of original principal ranging from $3,200 to $11,200 from July 1, 2007 to July 1, 2013. 

The BWI facilities are leased to the MAA through a direct financing lease (see Note 10). The BWI Airport Facilities Projects Bonds are 
payable solely from Passenger Facility Charges (PFC) received by the MAA and deposited with the Trustee (M&T Bank). The PFC rate 
for 2013 was $4.50 (not in thousands) and PFC collections for the year ending June 30, 2013 amounted to $48,535. The Series 2003A 
debt service reserve fund was no longer funded as of June 30, 2013, due to sufficient funding of interest due on, and the final principal 
maturity of, the Series 2003A Bonds on July 1, 2013.  The Series 2003 Bonds issued in accordance with the provisions of the 2003 Trust 
Agreement and interest thereon, do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the State of Maryland, MDOT or the MAA, 
but are payable solely from the PFCs, which the Authority receives from MAA in the form of direct financing lease payments. These 
bonds carry certain financial covenants with which the Authority must comply.

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
Variable Rate PFC (BWI Airport Facilities Projects) Revenue Bonds for the year ending June 30, 2013: 

*Based on the interest rate in effect on June 30, 2013.

Variable Rate Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest * 	 Total
	 2014 	 $ 11,200 	 $   1 	 $ 11,201
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Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds BWI Thurgood Marshall Airport, Series 2012A
During the year ending June 30, 2012, the Authority issued $50,905 of BWI Thurgood Marshall Airport (Qualified Airport Bonds 

– AMT) 2012A Bonds to finance a portion of the costs of certain projects (Airport Facilities Projects) located at BWI Marshall Airport. 
These bonds are secured equally and ratably by PFC collections on a parity basis with the other outstanding PFC Bonds. The Bonds 
mature in annual installments of original principal ranging from $1,795 to $3,780 from June 1, 2013 to June 1, 2032, with yields rang-
ing from 0.74% to 4.30%, at an All-In True Interest Cost at 3.79%. The facilities are leased to the MAA through a direct financing lease 
(see Note 10).

The debt service reserve fund for the year ending June 30, 2013 amounted to $14,121, which amount secures the Series 2012A, 
2012B and 2012C PFC Bonds hereafter described.  The Series 2012A PFC Bonds issued in accordance with the provisions of the master 
2003 Trust Agreement, as supplemented, and the interest thereon, do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the State 
of Maryland, MDOT or the MAA, but are payable solely from the PFCs, which the Authority receives from MAA in the form of direct 
financing lease payments. These bonds carry certain financial covenants with which the Authority must comply.

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
PFC Revenue Bonds Series 2012A for the year ending June 30, 2013: 

Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $   1,835 	 $   2,287 	 $     4,122

	 2015 	 1,870 	 2,214 	 4,084

	 2016 	 1,905 	 2,139 	 4,044

	 2017 	 1,965 	 2,043 	 4,008

	 2018 	 2,025 	 1,945 	 3,970

	 2019-2023 	 11,290 	 8,135 	 19,425

	 2024-2028 	 14,145 	 5,052 	 19,197

	 2029-2032 	 14,075 	 1,474 	 15,549

	 Total 	 $ 49,110 	 $ 25,289 	 $   74,399
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Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds BWI Thurgood Marshall Airport, Series 2012B
During the year ending June 30, 2013, the Authority issued $92,070 of BWI Thurgood Marshall Airport (Qualified Airport Bonds 

– AMT) Series 2012B Bonds to finance a portion of the costs of certain projects (Airport Facilities Projects) located at BWI Marshall 
Airport. These bonds are secured equally and ratably by PFC collections on a parity basis with the other outstanding PFC Bonds. The 
Bonds mature in annual installments of original principal ranging from $5,460 to $7,765 from June 1, 2014 to June 1, 2027, with yields 
ranging from 0.63% to 2.65%, at an All-In True Interest Cost of 2.42%. The facilities are leased to the MAA through a direct financing 
lease (see Note 10).

The debt service reserve fund for the year ending June 30, 2013 amounted to $14,121, which amount secures the Series 2012A, 
2012B and 2012C PFC Bonds described herein.  The Series 2012B PFC Bonds issued in accordance with the provisions of the Master 
2003 Trust Agreement, as supplemented, and the interest thereon, do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the State 
of Maryland, MDOT or the MAA, but are payable solely from the PFCs, which the Authority receives from MAA in the form of direct 
financing lease payments. These bonds carry certain financial covenants with which the Authority must comply.

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
PFC Revenue Bonds Series 2012B for the year ending June 30, 2013: 

Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Series 2012B

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $   5,460 	 $   2,510 	 $     7,970

	 2015 	 5,570 	 2,400 	 7,970

	 2016 	 5,680 	 2,289 	 7,969

	 2017 	 5,850 	 2,119 	 7,969

	 2018 	 6,025 	 1,943 	 7,968

	 2019-2023 	 33,535 	 6,308 	 39,843

	 2024-2028 	 29,950 	 1,924 	 31,874

	 Total 	 $ 92,070 	 $ 19,493 	 $ 111,563
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Variable Rate Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds BWI Thurgood Marshall Airport, Series 2012C
During the year ending June 30, 2013, the Authority issued $43,400 of BWI Thurgood Marshall Airport (Qualified Airport Bonds 

– AMT) 2012C Bonds to finance a portion of the costs of certain projects (Airport Facilities Projects) located at BWI Marshall Airport. 
These bonds are secured equally and ratably by PFC collections on a parity basis with all other outstanding PFC Bonds.   The Bonds 
fully mature on June 1, 2032 via sinking fund payments due on a term bond in the amount of $43,400. The facilities are leased to the 
MAA through a direct financing lease (see Note 10). The interest rates on the bonds are variable and the weekly reset rate was 0.09% as 
of June 30, 2013.

The debt service reserve fund for the year ending June 30, 2013 amounted to $14,121, which amount secures the Series 2012A, 
2012B and 2012C PFC Bonds described herein.  The Series 2012C PFC Bonds issued in accordance with the provisions of the Master 
2003 Trust Agreement, as supplemented, and the interest thereon, do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the State 
of Maryland, MDOT or the MAA, but are payable solely from the PFCs, which the Authority receives from MAA in the form of direct 
financing lease payments. These bonds carry certain financial covenants with which the Authority must comply.

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
PFC Revenue Bonds Series 2012C for the year ending June 30, 2013: 

 

*Based on the interest rate in effect on June 30, 2013.

Variable Rate Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Series 2012C

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest * 	 Total
	 2014 	 $           - 	 $        39 	 $          39

	 2015	  - 	 39 	 39

	 2016 	 - 	 39 	 39

	 2017 	 - 	 39 	 39

	 2018	  - 	 39 	 39

	 2019-2023 	 - 	 195 	 195

	 2024-2028 	 7,855 	 188 	 8,043

	 2029-2032 	 35,545 	 51 	 35,596

	 Total 	 $ 43,400 	 $      629 	 $   44,029
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BWI Airport Consolidated Rental Car Facility Bonds, Series 2002
During the year ending June 30, 2002, the Authority issued $117,345 of BWI Airport Consolidated Rental Car Facility Taxable 

Limited Obligation Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 (the Series 2002 Rental Car Facility Bonds), to finance the costs of a rental car facility 
located in the vicinity of BWI Marshall Airport. The interest rates on the bonds ranged from 2.74% to 6.65%. These bonds mature in 
annual installments of original principal ranging from $600 to $8,505 from July 1, 2003 to July 1, 2032.  The facility is leased to the 
MAA through a direct financing lease (See Note 10). 

The Series 2002 Rental Car Facility Bonds are payable as to principal and interest solely from Customer Facility Charges (CFC) and 
contingent rent, if applicable, from the MAA. The CFC rate in 2013 was $3.75 (not in thousands). CFC collections were $12,902 for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. The Series 2002 Bonds, issued in accordance with the provisions of the 2002 Trust Agreement, and the 
interest thereon, do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the State of Maryland, MDOT or the MAA, but are payable 
solely from the CFCs and contingent rent, if applicable, which the Authority will receive in the form of direct financing lease payments.  
These bonds carry certain financial covenants with which the Authority must comply.

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
Series 2002 Rental Car Facility Bonds for the year ending June 30, 2013: 

BWI Airport Consolidated Rental Car Facility Bonds, Series 2002

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $    2,545 	 $    6,445 	 $      8,990

	 2015 	 2,710 	 6,275 	 8,985

	 2016 	 2,885 	 6,094 	 8,979

	 2017 	 3,070 	 5,901	  8,971

	 2018 	 3,270 	 5,696 	 8,966

	 2019-2023 	 19,805 	 24,900 	 44,705

	 2024-2028 	 27,210 	 17,240 	 44,450

	 2029-2033 	 37,545 	 6,563 	 44,108

	 Total 	 $  99,040 	 $  79,114 	 $  178,154
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BWI Airport Parking Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A & 2012B
During the year ending June 30, 2012, the Authority issued $190,560 of BWI Airport Parking Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 

2012A – Governmental Purpose and Series 2012B – Qualified Airport – AMT (the Series 2012A and B Bonds), to refinance the outstand-
ing BWI Airport Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A – Governmental Purpose and Series 2012B – Qualified Airport – AMT (the Series 
2002A and B Bonds). The interest rates on the Series 2012 A and B Bonds range from 4.00% to 5.00%. The 2012 A and B Bonds mature 
in annual installments of original principal ranging from $8,535 to $16,455 from March 1, 2013 to March 1, 2027. The parking garage 
is leased to the MAA through a direct financing lease (See Note 10).

The Series 2012A and 2012B Bonds are payable as to principal and interest solely from the parking fees collected at BWI Marshall 
Airport. The Series 2012A and 2012B Bonds issued in accordance with the provisions of the 2002 Trust Agreement, as supplemented by 
the 2012 Supplemental Trust Agreement, and interest thereon, do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the State of 
Maryland, MDOT or the MAA, but are payable solely from the parking fees, which the Authority will receive in the form of direct financ-
ing lease payments. These bonds carry certain financial covenants with which the Authority must comply. The following summarizes 
the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements excluding unamortized premium on the Series 2012A and B Bonds for the 
year ending June 30, 2013.

Airport Parking Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A & 2012B

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $   10,845 	 $   8,880 	 $   19,725

	 2015 	 11,320 	 8,446 	 19,766

	 2016 	 11,805 	 7,993 	 19,798

	 2017 	 11,155 	 7,403 	 18,558

	 2018 	 11,385 	 6,845 	 18,230

	 2019-2023 	 64,260 	 25,153 	 89,413

	 2024-2027 	 61,255 	 7,843 	 69,098

	 Total 	 $ 182,025 	 $ 72,563 	 $ 254,588
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Lease Revenue Bonds Metrorail Parking Projects Series 2004 
During the year ending June 30, 2004, the Authority issued $40,000 of Lease Revenue Bonds Metrorail Parking Projects Series 2004 

(The Metrorail Parking Bonds) to finance three parking garages for the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA) at 
metrorail facilities in New Carrollton, Largo and College Park, Maryland. The interest rates on the bonds ranged from 3.00% to 5.00%. 
These bonds mature in annual installments of original principal ranging from $1,040 to $2,780 from July 1, 2006 to July 1, 2028. The 
facilities are leased to WMATA through a direct financing lease (see Note 10). 

The Metrorail Parking Bonds are payable as to principal and interest solely from pledged revenues payable to the Authority by 
WMATA under the Facility Lease Agreement and by Prince George’s County, Maryland under the Project Agreement and the Deficiency 
Agreement (as defined in the 2004 Trust Agreement). The parking surcharge rate (not in thousands) for 2013 was $0.75 per day and 
parking surcharge revenues for the year ending June 30, 2013 amounted to $3,451. The debt service reserve fund as of June 30, 2013 
was $2,927 and the requirement is $2,924, which is the maximum annual debt service in the bond year ending July 1, 2014. The Metro-
rail Parking Bonds issued in accordance with the provisions of the 2004 Trust Agreement and interest thereon, do not constitute a debt 
or pledge of the faith and credit of the State of Maryland, the MDOT, the Authority or Prince George’s County, but are payable solely from 
pledged revenue which the Authority receives from WMATA in the form of direct financing lease payments. These bonds carry certain 
financial covenants with which the Authority must comply.

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
Metrorail Parking Bonds for the year ending June 30, 2013:

Lease Revenue Bonds Metrorail Parking Projects Series 2004

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $   1,380 	 $   1,511 	 $   2,891

	 2015 	 1,440 	 1,454 	 2,894

	 2016 	 1,495 	 1,387 	 2,882

	 2017 	 1,570 	 1,310 	 2,880

	 2018 	 1,650 	 1,230 	 2,880

	 2019-2023 	 9,495 	 4,887 	 14,382

	 2024-2028 	 12,050 	 2,259 	 14,309

	 2029 	 2,780 	 70 	 2,850

	 Total 	 $ 31,860 	 $ 14,108 	 $ 45,968
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Lease Revenue Bonds Calvert Street Parking Garage Project, Series 2005 
During the year ending June 30, 2006, the Authority issued $23,760 of Lease Revenue Bonds Calvert Street Parking Garage Project, 

Series 2005 (the Calvert Street Parking Garage Bonds) to finance the cost of a parking garage for State of Maryland employees in Annapo-
lis, Maryland. The facility is leased to the Maryland Department of General Services (DGS) through a direct financing lease (See Note 10). 
The interest rates on the bonds ranged from 3.25% to 4.375%. These bonds mature in annual installments of original principal ranging 
from $585 to $1,415 from July 1, 2007 to July 1, 2032.  Principal and interest on the Calvert Street Parking Garage Bonds will be paid 
under a Facility Lease with DGS, and such other revenues attributable to the leasing of the garage and other funds held under a Trust 
Agreement dated as of June 1, 2005. DGS’s obligation to make rental payments is subject to appropriation by the General Assembly. The 
bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the State of Maryland, DGS, or the Authority.

The following summarizes the bonds payable maturities and sinking fund requirements, excluding unamortized premium, on the 
Calvert Street Parking Garage Bonds for the year ending June 30, 2013:

Lease Revenue Bonds Calvert Street Parking Garage Project, Series 2005

	 Year Ending June 30, 	 Principal 	 Interest 	 Total
	 2014 	 $      695 	 $     837 	 $   1,532

	 2015 	 715 	 802 	 1,517

	 2016 	 740 	 766 	 1,506

	 2017 	 765 	 732 	 1,497

	 2018 	 795 	 701 	 1,496

	 2019-2023 	 4,415 	 2,994 	 7,409

	 2024-2028 	 5,340 	 1,992 	 7,332

	 2029-2033 	 6,530 	 733 	 7,263

	 Total 	 $ 19,995 	 $  9,557 	 $ 29,552
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NOT   E  6  –  Commitments  and  Cont ingenc ies

Leases
In January 2013, the Authority entered into a two year extension of the present lease for office space for the Authority’s Division of 

Information Technology, Office of Planning and Project Management, Division of Finance and the Office of Human Resources and Work 
Force Development Training Sections.  Rent expense for the year ending June 30, 2013 totaled $345.  

The following is a schedule showing future minimum lease payments:

Contracts
For the year ending June 30, 2013, the Authority was contractually liable for $872,762 of uncompleted construction and improve-

ment contracts relating to its various projects. Exclusive of that amount, the Authority currently contemplates the expenditure, through 
2019, of $2,222,449 for capital additions, improvements and major rehabilitation.

NOT   E  7  –  Ret i rement  Benef i ts

The Authority and its employees contribute to the Maryland State Retirement and Pension System (System). The System is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system established by the State to provide retirement, death and disability ben-
efits for State employees and employees of participating entities within the State. The Authority accounts for the Plan as a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer public employee retirement system. A separate valuation is not performed for the Authority. The Authority’s only 
obligation to the System is its required annual contribution. The System is administered by a Board of Trustees in accordance with the 
State Personnel and Pensions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, Section 35-201. The System prepares a separate Comprehen-
sive Annual Financial Report, which can be obtained from the Maryland State Retirement Agency, 120 East Baltimore Street, Suite 1600, 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202.

The System includes several plans based on date of hire and job function.  Authority employees are members of the Employees’ and 
Teachers’ Retirement System, Employees’ and Teachers’ Pension System, or Law Enforcement Officers’ Pension System. 

The Employees’ and Teachers’ Retirement System (the Retirement Plan) includes those employees hired prior to January 1, 1980 who 
have not elected to transfer to the Employees’ and Teachers’ Pension System (the Pension Plan) and are not a member of the Law Enforce-
ment Officers’ Pension System (the Officers’ Plan). Conversely, members of the Pension Plan include those employees hired after January 
1, 1980 and prior employees who elected to transfer from the Retirement Plan and are not a member of the Officers’ Plan.  Members of 
the Officers’ Plan include all Authority law enforcement officers. 

Members of the Retirement Plan become vested after 5 years.  Members are generally eligible for full retirement benefits upon the 
earlier of attaining age 60 or accumulating 30 years of eligible service regardless of age. The annual retirement allowance equals 1/55 
(1.8%) of the member’s highest three-year average final salary (AFS) multiplied by the number of years of accumulated creditable service. 
A member may retire with reduced benefits after completing 25 years of eligible service. Benefits are reduced by 0.5% per month for 
each month the payments begin prior to age 60 or 30 years of eligible service, whichever is less. The maximum reduction for a member 
is 30%. 

		L  ease 
	 Year Ending June 30,	 Payments
	 2014 	 $  346

	 2015 	 $  173

	 Total 	 $  519
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The Pension Plan includes several components based on a member’s date of hire.  This is the result of legislative changes to the Pen-
sion Plan enacted in 1998, 2006 and 2011. Provisions for these components are largely the same; however, important distinctions exist 
in the areas of member contributions, retirement eligibility and benefit calculations. Generally, the greatest distinctions for members of 
the plan exist for those hired before July 1, 2011, and those hired on or after that date.  The following applies to members of the Pension 
Plan hired before July 1, 2011.  Vesting occurs once members have accrued at least 5 years of eligible service.  Members of the Pension 
Plan are generally eligible for full retirement benefits upon attaining age 62, with specified years of eligibility service, or accumulating  
30 years of eligibility service regardless of age. Generally, the annual pension allowance for a member equals 1.2% of the member’s 
three-year AFS, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service accumulated prior to July 1, 1998, plus 1.8% of the members’ 
AFS, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service accumulated subsequent to June 30, 1998. A member may retire with re-
duced benefits upon attaining age 55 with at least 15 years of eligible service. Benefits are reduced by 0.5% per month for each month 
remaining until the retiree reaches the normal retirement service age. The normal retirement service age is 62 with a maximum reduction  
of 42%.

The following applies to members of the Pension Plan hired on or after July 1, 2011.  Vesting occurs once members have accrued at 
least 10 years of eligible service. To receive full retirement benefits, eligibility is determined by the Rule of 90, which requires that the 
sum of the member’s age and years of eligibility service is at least 90. The annual pension allowance for a member equals 1.5% of the 
member’s five-year AFS multiplied by the number of years of creditable service. A member may retire with reduced benefits upon attain-
ing age 60 with at least 15 years of eligible service. Benefits are reduced by 0.5% per month for each month remaining until the retiree 
reaches the normal retirement service age. The normal retirement service age is 65, with a maximum reduction of 30%.

For members of the Officers’ Plan, vesting occurs once members have accrued at least 5 years of eligible service.  Members are eligible 
for full retirement benefits upon the earlier of attaining age 50 or accumulating 25 years of eligible service regardless of age. Generally, 
the annual pension allowance for a member equals 1/50 (2.0%) of the member’s AFS, multiplied by the number of years of creditable 
service up to 30 years plus 1.0% of the member’s AFS for creditable service in excess of 30 years. The Officers’ Plan does not provide 
for early retirement.

Funding Policy
Each of the above plans are funded by contributions from its members and contributions from the State and participating govern-

mental agencies. The Authority’s required contributions are estimated by annual actuarial valuations using the entry age normal cost 
method with projection and other actuarial assumptions adopted by the Board of Trustees. Members of the Retirement System and the 
Law Enforcement Officers’ Pension System are required to contribute 5% to 7% earnable compensation.

The Authority’s contributions, which equal 100% of the annual required contributions, for the three years ending June 30, 2013, 
2012, and 2011 are as follows:

	 2013	 2012	 2011
Authority contribution 	 $ 20,687 	 $ 18,657 	 $ 18,070

Percentage of payroll 	 25.7%	  22.8% 	 22.6%

NOT   E  7  –  Ret i rement  Benef i ts  (continued)
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NOT   E  8  –  Other  Postemployment  Benef i ts

State Employee and Retiree Health and Welfare Benefits Program of Maryland:

Plan Description:
Members of the State Retirement, Pension, and Law Enforcement Officers’ Systems and their dependents are provided postemploy-

ment health care benefits through the State Employee and Retiree Health and Welfare Benefits Program (Plan). The Plan is a cost-sharing 
defined-benefit healthcare plan established by the State Personnel and Pensions Article, Sections 2-501 through 2-516 of the Annotated 
Code of Maryland. The Plan is self-insured to provide medical, hospitalization, prescription drug and dental insurance benefits to 
eligible State employees, retirees, and their dependents. A separate valuation is not performed for the Authority. The Authority’s only 
obligation to the Plan is its required annual contribution.

Effective June 1, 2004, the State established the Postretirement Health Benefits Trust Fund (OPEB Trust) to receive appropriated 
funds and contributions to assist the Plan in financing the State’s postretirement health insurance subsidy. The OPEB Trust is established 
in accordance with the State Personnel and Pensions Article, Section 34-101 of the Annotated Code of Maryland and is administered by 
the State of Maryland. The Plan is included in the State’s CAFR which can be obtained from the Comptroller of Maryland, LLG Treasury 
Building located in Annapolis, Maryland.

Authority employees are members of the Plan. Members, generally, may enroll and participate in the health benefit options if the 
retiree ending State service with at least 10 years of creditable service and within five years before the age at which a vested retirement 
allowance normally would begin or if the retiree ending State service with at least 16 years of creditable service.  

Funding Policy
Beginning in fiscal year 2008, State law requires the State’s Department of Budget and Management to transfer any subsidy received 

as a result of the federal Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 or similar subsidy to the OPEB Trust 
to fund OPEB benefits. To further prefund benefits, during fiscal year 2008, the State transferred funds from the State Reserve Fund 
Dedicated Purpose Account.  Additionally, the State is required by law to provide funding each year for the Plan for the State’s share of 
the pay-as-you-go amount necessary to provide current benefits to active and retired employees and their dependents.  Funds may also 
be separately appropriated in the State’s budget for transfer to the OPEB Trust.

Based on current practice, the State subsidizes approximately 50% to 85% of covered medical, dental, prescription, and hospitaliza-
tion costs, depending on the type of insurance plan. The State assesses a surcharge for postemployment health care benefits, which is 
based on health care insurance charges for current employees. Costs for postretirement benefits are for State of Maryland retirees. The 
State does not distinguish employees by employer/State agency. Instead, the State allocates the postemployment health care costs to all 
participating employers.

For the years ending June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the State did not allocate postemployment health care costs to participating 
employers and as a result did not require a contribution to be made by the Authority.
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NOT   E  9  –  R isk  Management  and  L i t igat ion

Accrued Workers’ Compensation Costs
The Authority has recorded its portion of the State of Maryland’s workers’ compensation costs. The workers’ compensation costs 

accrual represents the liability for anticipated claims and claims expense for the Authority’s employees, less the cumulative excess of 
premiums paid to the Injured Workers’ Insurance Fund and net investment income applicable to the Authority’s coverage. Changes in 
the balance for the Authority’s worker compensation liability for the years ending June 30 are as follows:

Self-Insurance and Third-Party Insurance
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; 

injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority participates in the State of Maryland’s self-insurance program (the Program), 
which covers general liability, property and casualty, workers’ compensation, environmental liabilities and provides certain employee 
health benefits. 

The Program allocates its cost of providing claims servicing and claims payments by charging a premium to the Authority based on 
a percentage of estimated current payroll or based on average loss experience. In addition, the Authority maintains certain third party 
policies for structural property and liability damages. Settlements did not exceed insurance coverage for damages over the past three 
fiscal years. The Authority’s premium payments for the year ending June 30, 2013 were approximately $7,932.

Litigation
The Authority is a defendant in a number of claims and suits resulting from capital and maintenance contracts and other operational 

matters. The Authority plans to vigorously defend these claims. In the opinion of the Authority’s management, the settlement of these 
claims will not have a material adverse effect on the accompanying financial statements.

Worker’s Compensation 
(In Thousands) 

	 For The Year Ending
	 June 30, 2013  

Unpaid Claims 	 $  11,291 

Incurred Claims and changes in estimates 	 3,366 

Claim payments 	 (2,864)  

Total unpaid claims 	 $  11,793  
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NOT   E  1 0  –  Re la t ionsh ips  w i th  Other  Governmenta l  Agenc ies

The Authority has entered into contractual agreements and performs services for other governmental agencies. The Authority  
receives rent, interest income, and fees for services, which are included in intergovernmental revenue in the accompanying finan-
cial statements. In addition, other governmental agencies provide services to the Authority, which are included in the appropriate  
expense category.

The Authority’s intergovernmental revenue for the year ending June 30, 2013 is as follows:

 

Federal Highway Administration
The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) provided funding for the Intercounty Connector Project (ICC).  This funding is in the 

form of Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle (GARVEE) bond proceeds.  For the year ending June 30, 2013, intergovernmental revenue 
of $87,451 was received from the Federal Highway Administration.

Maryland Aviation Administration
The Maryland Transportation Authority Police provide law enforcement services at the Maryland Aviation Administration’s Baltimore/

Washington International Thurgood Marshall Airport.  Protection is provided in the main terminal and lots, as well as the rental car and 
cargo facilities.  For the year ending June 30, 2013, intergovernmental revenue of $17,620 was received from the Maryland Aviation 
Administration.    

Internal Revenue Service
For the year ending June 30, the Authority received a subsidy of $14,446 from the Internal Revenue Service for the Series 2009B and 

2010B Build America Bonds (BABs) issued by the Authority in December, 2009 and July, 2010, respectively. The 35% subsidy on bond 
interest payments due on the BABs was subject to an 8.7% reduction caused by sequestration effective March 1, 2013.

Maryland Port Administration
The Maryland Transportation Authority Police provide the primary security at the Maryland Port Administrations facilities (Port of 

Baltimore).  Among the areas protected are the Seagirt and Dundalk Marine Terminals, the Cruise Maryland Passenger Terminal and the 
Administrations’ World Trade Center headquarters building in downtown Baltimore.  For the year ending June 30, 2013, intergovern-
mental revenue of $5,807 was received from the Maryland Port Administration. 

Intergovernmental Revenue Summary

Federal Highway Administration 	 $   87,451

Maryland Aviation Administration (MAA) 	 17,620

Internal Revenue Service 	 14,446

Maryland Port Administration (MPA)	  5,807

State Highway Administration and Other 	 1,459

Federal Emergency Management Agency 	 517

Mass Transit Administration 	 370

Maryland Motor Vehicle Administration (MVA) 	 (10)

		  $ 127,660
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Direct Financing Lease Receivable
The Authority has entered into capital lease agreements with other governmental agencies, whereby the Authority loaned or issued 

conduit debt to finance certain other governmental agencies projects.

The Authority’s direct financing lease receivables and notes receivable outstanding for the year ending June 30, 2013, consisted of 
the following:

The Authority holds funds to be used for future improvement projects in connection with certain financing for the Maryland Aviation 
Administration. The respective funds are included in intergovernmental payable in the accompanying statements.

	  	Direct Financing	 Notes
	 	Lease Receivable	 Receivable
Maryland Port Administration 		  $             - 	 $  9,511

Maryland Aviation Administration 		  321,181 	 -

Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority 		  27,544 	 -

Maryland Department of General Services 		  19,297 	 -

Total 	 	 	 368,022 	 9,511

Current portion 			   33,960 	 1,674

Noncurrent portion 			   334,062 	 7,837

Total 	 	 	 $  368,022 	 $  9,511

NOT   E  1 0  –  Re la t ionsh ips  w i th  Other  Governmenta l  Agenc ies  (continued)



C o m p r e h e n s i v e  A n n u a l  F i n a n c i a l  Re  p o r t  F o r  t h e  F i s ca  l  Yea   r  E n d i n g  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 1 3     x      69

NOT   E S  TO   TH  E  F IN  A N C I A L  ST  A T E M E NTS    ( I n  T h o u s a n d s )

Maryland Port Administration
The Authority and the Maryland Port Administration (MPA) entered into a capital lease agreement, on April 21, 1998, whereby the 

Authority finances an amount not to exceed $20,000 and MPA designed, engineered, constructed and currently operates the Masonville 
Phase I Auto Terminal. Payments are made to the Authority in twenty equal installments, including interest at a rate of 5.5%, which 
began on June 30 in the year following the completion of construction. Principal due on this lease for the year ending June 30, 2013, is 
approximately $1,090. The present value of the capital lease as of June 30, 2013, is as follows:

Maryland Aviation Administration 
The Authority has direct financing leases with the Maryland Aviation Administration (MAA). The Authority borrowed funds to fi-

nance the development and construction of certain airport facilities projects at BWI Marshall Airport. The Authority leases these airport 
facilities project assets to MAA under capital leases expiring on the date at which the Authority has recovered all of its costs related to the 
airport facilities projects.  Per the related facility lease and financing agreements, amounts due the Authority under these capital leases are 
identical to the debt payment terms of the Variable Rate Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds (BWI Airport Facilities Projects), Series 
2003, Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds (BWI Airport Facilities Projects) Series 2012A and Series 2012B and the Variable Rate 
Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bonds (BWI Airport Facilities Projects) Series 2012C, BWI Airport Consolidated Rental Car Facility 
Bonds Series 2002 and BWI Airport Parking Revenue Bonds Series 2012, detailed in Note 5. MAA funds the leases through payment to 
the Authority of all revenues received from the facilities financed under these lease agreements. 

 

	 Year Ending June 30,	 Lease Payments
	 2014 	 $   1 ,674

	 2015 	 1 ,674

	 2016 	 1 ,674

	 2017 	 1 ,674

	 2018-2020 	 5 ,019

Total Future Payments 		  11,715

Less: Unearned Income 		  2 ,204

Total 		  $   9,511

Masonville Phase I Auto Terminal

NOT   E  1 0  –  Re la t ionsh ips  w i th  Other  Governmenta l  Agenc ies  (continued)
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The present value of the direct financing leases for the year ending June 30, 2013, is as follows:

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 BWI Airport
	 	 	 	 BWI Airport	 BWI Airport	 BWI Airport	 Variable	
	 	 	 Consolidated	 Variable Rate	 PFC	 PFC	 Rate	
	 	 BWI Parking 	 Rental Car	 PFC Project-	 Project-	 Project-	 PFC Project-	
	 Year Ending June 30,	 Facility	 Facility	 2003A	 2012A	 2012B	 2012C 	 Total

	 2014 	 $   10,845 	 $   2,545 	 $ 11,200 	 $   1,835 	 $   5,460 	 $          - 	 $   31,885

	 2015 	 11,320 	 2,710	  - 	 1,870 	 5,570 	 - 	 21,470

	 2016 	 11,805 	 2,885	  - 	 1,905 	 5,680 	 - 	 22,275

	 2017 	 11,155 	 3,070	  - 	 1,965 	 5,850 	 - 	 22,040

	 2018 	 11,385 	 3,270	  - 	 2,025 	 6,025 	 - 	 22,705

	 2019-2023 	 64,260 	 19,805 	 - 	 11,290 	 33,535	  - 	 128,890

	 2024-2028 	 61,255 	 27,210	  - 	 14,145 	 29,950 	 7,855 	 140,415

	 2029-2032 	 - 	 37,545 	 - 	 14,075	  - 	 35,545 	 87,165

Total Bonds Payable 	 182,025 	 99,040 	 11,200 	 49,110 	 92,070 	 43,400 	 476,845

Plus: Premium on Bonds Payable 	 22,293 	 - 	 - 	 3,856 	 3,200	  - 	 29,349

Plus: Deferred Amount on Refunding	 (4,734) 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 (4,734)

Plus: Interest Payable 	 2,960 	 3,264 	 1 	 191 	 209 	 3 	 6,628

Plus: Accounts Payable/Accrued Liab. 	 - 	 - 	 47 	 4,363 	 3,532	  - 	 7,942

		  20,519 	 3,264 	 48 	 8,410 	 6,941 	 3 	 39,185

Less: Cash & Investments 	 26,314 	 8,614 	 15,747 	 26,252 	 73,312 	 40,921 	 191,160

Less: Accounts Receivable 	 - 	 430 	 -	  - 	 -	  - 	 430

Less: Interest Receivable/Accrued Int.	  24 	 - 	 -	  33 	 309 	 158 	 524

Less: Bond Issue Costs 	 575 	 -	 -	  348 	 1,411 	 401 	 2,735

		  26,913 	 9,044 	 15,747 	 26,633 	 75,032 	 41,480 	 194,849

Net Investments in Direct 	
Financing Lease Receivable 	 $ 175,631 	 $ 93,260 	 $ (4,499) 	 $ 30,887 	 $ 23,979 	 $   1,923 	 $ 321,181

NOT   E  1 0  –  Re la t ionsh ips  w i th  Other  Governmenta l  Agenc ies  (continued)
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Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority
The Authority has a direct financing lease with the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA). The Authority  

 borrowed funds to finance the development and construction of certain parking facilities projects at Metrorail stations in the  
Washington DC metropolitan area. The Authority leases these project assets to WMATA under capital leases expiring on the date at 
which the Authority has recovered all of its costs related to the parking facilities projects. Per the related facility lease and financing 
agreements, amounts due the Authority under these capital leases are identical to the debt payment terms of the lease revenue bonds, 
Metrorail Parking Projects Series 2004 Bonds. WMATA funds the lease through rental payments to the Authority’s Trustee equal to the 
schedule of debt service requirements for the bonds. The present value of the direct financing lease for the year ending June 30, 2013, 
is as follows: 

 
		  WMATA   
	 Year Ending June 30,	 Parking Facilities
	 2014 	 $   1,380

	 2015 	 1,440

	 2016 	 1,495

	 2017 	 1,570

	 2018 	 1,650

	 2019-2023 	 9,495

	 2024-2028 	 12,050

	 2029 	 2,780

Total Bonds Payable 		  31,860

Plus: Interest Payable 		  769

Plus: Accounts Payable 		  3

		  772

Less: Cash & Investments 		  5,079

Less: Interest Receivable 		  9

		  5,088

Net Investments in Direct	
Financing Lease Receivable 	  	 $ 27,544

NOT   E  1 0  –  Re la t ionsh ips  w i th  Other  Governmenta l  Agenc ies  (continued)
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Maryland Department of General Services
The Authority has a direct financing lease with the Maryland Department of General Services (DGS). The Authority borrowed funds 

to finance the development and construction of a parking garage for State of Maryland employees in Annapolis, Maryland. The Author-
ity leases the project to DGS under a capital lease expiring on the date at which the Authority has recovered all of its costs related to the 
parking facilities projects. Per the related facility lease and financing agreements, amounts due the Authority under these capital leases 
are identical to the debt payment terms of the lease revenue bonds, Calvert Street Parking Garage Project Series 2005 Bonds. DGS funds 
the lease through rental payments to the Authority’s Trustee equal to the schedule of debt service requirements for the bonds. The present 
value of the direct financing lease for the year ending June 30, 2013, is as follows:

		  Calvert Street  
	 Year Ending June 30,	 Parking Facilities
	 2014 	 $      695

	 2015 	 715

	 2016 	 740

	 2017 	 765

	 2018 	 795

	 2019-2023 	 4,415

	 2024-2028 	 5,340

	 2029-2033 	 6,530

Total Bonds Payable 		  19,995

Plus: Interest Payable 		  427

Less: Cash & Investments 		  1,125

Net Investments in Direct Financing Lease Receivable 	 $ 19,297

NOT   E  1 0  –  Re la t ionsh ips  w i th  Other  Governmenta l  Agenc ies  (continued)
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6,
07

0,
84

8	
43

6,
05

2	
2,

07
6,

28
2	

1,
69

4,
17

5	
1,

42
4,

99
6	

7,
17

1,
48

7	
6,

31
3,

36
8	

 - 
  	

 5
,2

44
 

  I
nt

er
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
	

12
7,

65
9,

80
0	

7,
39

0	
93

,5
74

,3
53

	
80

7,
13

0	
86

2,
99

8	
85

3,
35

5	
1,

01
5,

92
2	

5,
40

4,
69

0	
87

5,
98

0	
 2

4,
25

5,
31

8 
	

 2
,6

64
 

  C
on

ce
ss

io
ns

	
4,

08
7,

80
0	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

4,
08

7,
80

0	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 -

   

  O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
	

4,
40

4,
30

4	
12

1,
83

4	
11

0,
68

0	
12

,1
96

	
8,

19
1	

29
7,

66
0	

56
,6

79
	

3,
01

7,
85

3	
40

6,
88

3	
 2

08
,4

01
 	

 1
63

,9
27

 

OP
ER

AT
IN

G 
RE

VE
NU

E	
61

7,
33

4,
08

4	
9,

13
8,

20
3	

13
9,

34
2,

16
1	

14
,3

04
,8

08
	

55
,7

42
,6

80
	

55
,3

18
,2

18
	

31
,7

14
,2

22
	

14
2,

68
5,

93
5	

14
4,

45
2,

30
3	

 2
4,

46
3,

71
9 

	
 1

71
,8

35
 

EX
PE

NS
ES

 (E
xc

lu
di

ng
 G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es
):											
















   
   

Op
er

at
io

ns
 &

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
al

ar
ie

s	
49

,4
98

,9
87

	
1,

44
6,

22
0	

2,
77

2,
42

1	
2,

29
7,

17
0	

5,
06

6,
31

6	
6,

64
7,

97
8	

4,
01

7,
96

3	
9,

08
8,

29
2	

7,
70

6,
08

1	
 - 

  	
 1

0,
45

6,
54

6 

   
   

Po
lic

e 
Pa

tro
l S

al
ar

ie
s	

67
,0

75
,3

08
	

2,
43

9,
13

7	
3,

02
8,

30
9	

1,
54

4,
73

6	
3,

40
8,

15
8	

2,
33

4,
31

0	
2,

43
1,

68
4	

5,
74

3,
92

7	
7,

47
6,

70
3	

 3
8,

66
8,

34
4 

	
 -

   

   
   

Op
er

at
io

ns
 &

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 E
xp

en
se

s	
61

,3
68

,1
59

	
1,

39
7,

74
2	

2,
32

5,
80

0	
1,

51
5,

97
2	

7,
08

9,
34

3	
4,

14
2,

53
1	

2,
47

8,
72

9	
6,

86
7,

53
7	

6,
56

8,
54

1	
 - 

  	
 2

8,
98

1,
96

4 

   
   

Pa
tro

l E
xp

en
se

s	
13

,0
45

,9
33

	
10

9,
56

9	
17

8,
88

1	
21

4,
29

1	
30

5,
91

1	
86

7	
16

9,
61

4	
5,

45
7,

39
7	

1,
08

1,
71

5	
 5

,4
24

,2
62

 	
 1

03
,4

26
 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s	
19

0,
98

8,
38

7	
5,

39
2,

66
8	

8,
30

5,
41

1	
5,

57
2,

16
9	

15
,8

69
,7

28
	

13
,1

25
,6

86
	

9,
09

7,
99

0	
27

,1
57

,1
53

	
22

,8
33

,0
40

	
 4

4,
09

2,
60

6 
	

 3
9,

54
1,

93
6 

De
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e	

 1
03

,7
43

,2
06

 

General and 








Administrative 











Expenses





   
 A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Sa
la

rie
s	

13
,9

38
,1

47

   
 O

th
er

 E
xp

en
se

s	
37

,8
15

,7
74

   
  T

ot
al

		


51
,7

53
,9

21

IN
CO

M
E 

FR
OM

 O
PE

RA
TI

ON
S	

 $
27

0,
84

8,
57

1 
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M

ar
yl

an
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Au

th
or

ity
St

at
em

en
t o

f T
ra

ffi
c 

Vo
lu

m
e 

an
d 

To
ll 

In
co

m
e 

Fo
r T

he
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r E
nd

in
g 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

3

ALL
 

FA
CILI


TIES



TR
AF

FI
C 

VO
LU

M
E

Class 



2 

& 
8 

Ve
hicles




	
JF

K	
TJ

H	
HW

N	
 W

PL
	

BH
T	

FS
K	

FM
T	

IC
C	

TO
TA

L

M
an

ual


Fu
ll 

Fa
re

	
 4

,6
09

,1
14

 	
 3

35
,9

30
 	

 1
,5

46
,8

07
 	

 4
,1

27
,8

70
 	

 7
,0

14
,3

20
 	

 2
,3

35
,1

11
  	

11
,7

31
,9

17
  	

-  
 	

 3
1,

70
1,

06
9 

Of
fic

ia
l D

ut
y	

 1
5,

63
3 

	
 4

,8
97

 	
 1

,9
79

 	
 1

3,
27

1 
	

 7
8,

13
5 

	
 3

1,
78

8 
	

 6
1,

11
5 

	
 - 

  	
 2

06
,8

18
 

To
ta

l:	
 4

,6
24

,7
47

 	
 3

40
,8

27
 	

 1
,5

48
,7

86
 	

 4
,1

41
,1

41
 	

 7
,0

92
,4

55
 	

 2
,3

66
,8

99
 	

 1
1,

79
3,

03
2 

	
 - 

  	
 3

1,
90

7,
88

7 

E-
ZP

ass


Fu
ll 

Fa
re

	
 5

,5
89

,9
10

 	
15

3,
33

9 
	

33
2,

06
5 

	
1,

40
6,

70
9 

	
3,

03
0,

77
4 

	
33

8,
15

4 
	

7,
87

9,
48

0 
	

 1
4,

92
7,

87
6 

	
 3

3,
65

8,
30

7 
M

D 
E-

ZP
as

s	
 1

,3
48

,0
18

 	
13

4,
55

3 
	

27
5,

38
0 

	
2,

52
1,

93
6 

	
3,

14
4,

49
2 

	
1,

30
0,

46
5 

	
5,

58
0,

39
3 

	
 - 

  	
 1

4,
30

5,
23

8 
   

  C
om

m
ut

er
	

 1
,1

59
,8

22
 	

11
1,

04
6 

	
87

3,
98

4 
	

3,
25

8,
93

3 
	

9,
62

8,
06

7 
	

5,
65

2,
66

1 
	

14
,1

09
,6

58
 	

 - 
  	

 3
4,

79
4,

17
1 

   
   

Sh
op

pe
rs

	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
33

1,
58

1 
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 3
31

,5
81

 
   

  H
at

em
 P

la
n 

A	
 - 

  	
2,

36
0,

42
0 

	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 2

,3
60

,4
20

 
   

  H
at

em
 P

la
n 

B	
 - 

  	
1,

23
1,

16
4 

	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 1

,2
31

,1
64

 
   

  O
ffi

ci
al

 D
ut

y	
 8

3,
57

3 
	

43
,0

20
 	

26
,8

30
 	

11
1,

65
9 

	
34

3,
94

6 
	

23
3,

86
5 

	
41

0,
61

0 
	

 3
35

,3
88

 	
 1

,5
88

,8
91

 
To

ta
l:	

 8
,1

81
,3

23
 	

 4
,0

33
,5

42
 	

 1
,5

08
,2

59
 	

 7
,6

30
,8

17
 	

 1
6,

14
7,

27
9 

	
 7

,5
25

,1
45

 	
 2

7,
98

0,
14

1 
	

 1
5,

26
3,

26
4 

	
 8

8,
26

9,
77

1 
To

ta
l(2

 &
 8

 C
la

ss
 V

eh
ic

le
s)

:	
 1

2,
80

6,
07

0 
	

 4
,3

74
,3

70
 	

 3
,0

57
,0

45
 	

 1
1,

77
1,

95
8 

	
 2

3,
23

9,
73

4 
	

 9
,8

92
,0

45
 	

 3
9,

77
3,

17
3 

	
 1

5,
26

3,
26

4 
	

 1
20

,1
77

,6
58

 

Class 



3 

Ve
hicles




M
an

ua
l	

 3
7,

61
2 

	
 6

,6
97

 	
 1

8,
07

8 
	

 4
9,

82
8 

	
 3

7,
14

5 
	

 3
7,

43
1 

	
 9

3,
98

8 
	

 - 
  	

 2
80

,7
79

 
A 

Se
rie

s	
 - 

  	
 1

28
 	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 1
28

 
T 

Se
rie

s	
 - 

  	
 3

0,
50

9 
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 3
0,

50
9 

E-
ZP

as
s	

 1
96

,2
54

 	
 3

0,
57

9 
	

 1
3,

91
7 

	
 8

7,
58

1 
	

 2
07

,3
13

 	
 1

65
,9

47
 	

 4
91

,7
11

 	
 1

89
,2

65
 	

 1
,3

82
,5

67
 

To
ta

l:	
 2

33
,8

66
 	

 6
7,

91
3 

	
 3

1,
99

5 
	

 1
37

,4
09

 	
 2

44
,4

58
 	

 2
03

,3
78

 	
 5

85
,6

99
 	

 1
89

,2
65

 	
 1

,6
93

,9
83

 

Class 



4 

Ve
hicles




M
an

ua
l	

 4
5,

92
1 

	
 3

,6
91

 	
 2

1,
56

6 
	

 4
5,

53
3 

	
 2

5,
11

2 
	

 2
2,

87
0 

	
 7

7,
30

4 
	

 - 
  	

 2
41

,9
97

 
A 

Se
rie

s	
 - 

  	
 9

4 
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 9
4 

T 
Se

rie
s	

 - 
  	

 7
13

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 7

13
 

E-
ZP

as
s	

14
0,

21
3 

	
 1

9,
38

0 
	

 1
4,

65
2 

	
 7

0,
49

7 
	

 6
7,

78
7 

	
 1

13
,3

53
 	

 3
33

,2
46

 	
 8

9,
56

2 
	

 8
48

,6
90

 
To

ta
l:	

18
6,

13
4 

	
 2

3,
87

8 
	

 3
6,

21
8 

	
 1

16
,0

30
 	

 9
2,

89
9 

	
 1

36
,2

23
 	

 4
10

,5
50

 	
 8

9,
56

2 
	

 1
,0

91
,4

94
 

Class 



5 

Ve
hicles




M
an

ua
l	

21
0,

76
6 

	
 1

5,
40

1 
	

 2
7,

23
5 

	
 2

39
,2

44
 	

 2
5,

80
9 

	
 7

0,
82

5 
	

 4
15

,1
91

 	
 - 

  	
 1

,0
04

,4
71

 
A 

Se
rie

s	
 - 

  	
 2

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 2

 
E-

ZP
as

s	
1,

00
7,

46
3 

	
 6

4,
28

2 
	

 8
6,

91
2 

	
 3

56
,2

01
 	

 1
88

,2
04

 	
 5

02
,2

16
 	

 1
,9

76
,6

18
 	

 1
37

,3
77

 	
 4

,3
19

,2
73

To
ta

l:	
1,

21
8,

22
9 

	
 7

9,
68

5 
	

 1
14

,1
47

 	
 5

95
,4

45
 	

 2
14

,0
13

 	
 5

73
,0

41
 	

 2
,3

91
,8

09
 	

 1
37

,3
77

 	
 5

,3
23

,7
46

 

Class 



6 

Ve
hicles




M
an

ua
l	

 3
,0

89
 	

 5
9 

	
 7

06
 	

 2
,9

08
 	

 2
94

 	
 1

,1
99

 	
 3

,3
78

 	
 - 

  	
 1

1,
63

3 
E-

ZP
as

s	
 2

1,
12

9 
	

 4
72

 	
 4

,5
58

 	
 1

3,
11

2 
	

 1
,8

11
 	

 1
6,

57
1 

	
 3

4,
13

9 
	

 3
,4

90
 	

 9
5,

28
2 

To
ta

l:	
 2

4,
21

8 
	

 5
31

 	
 5

,2
64

 	
 1

6,
02

0 
	

 2
,1

05
 	

 1
7,

77
0 

	
 3

7,
51

7 
	

 3
,4

90
 	

 1
06

,9
15

 

Total 



(C

la
ss

 2
, 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
 &

 8
 V

eh
ic

le
s)

	
 1

4,
46

8,
51

7 
	

 4
,5

46
,3

77
 	

 3
,2

44
,6

69
 	

 1
2,

63
6,

86
2 

	
 2

3,
79

3,
20

9 
	

 1
0,

82
2,

45
7 

	
 4

3,
19

8,
74

8 
	

 1
5,

68
2,

95
8 

	
 1

28
,3

93
,7

96
 

Vi
de

o 
Tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
	

 1
13

,2
81

 	
 1

6,
55

3 
	

 1
6,

26
2 

	
 9

8,
83

5 
	

 1
78

,7
44

 	
 9

9,
65

2 
	

 3
77

,8
21

 	
 1

,5
15

,0
69

 	
 2

,4
16

,2
17

 

Grand 



Total


:

	
 1

4,
58

1,
79

8 
	

 4
,5

62
,9

30
 	

 3
,2

60
,9

31
 	

 1
2,

73
5,

69
7 

	
 2

3,
97

1,
95

3 
	

 1
0,

92
2,

10
9 

	
 4

3,
57

6,
56

9 
	

 1
7,

19
8,

02
7 

	
 1

30
,8

10
,0

13
 

Note


: N
um

be
rs

 m
ay

 n
ot

 s
um

 to
 to

ta
l d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

.
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M
ar

yl
an

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Au
th

or
ity

St
at

em
en

t o
f T

ra
ffi

c 
Vo

lu
m

e 
an

d 
To

ll 
In

co
m

e 

Fo
r T

he
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r E
nd

in
g 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

3

ALL
 

FA
CILI


TIES



TO
LL

 IN
CO

M
E

Class 



2 

& 
8 

Ve
hicles




	
JF

K	
TJ

H	
HW

N	
 W

PL
	

BH
T	

FS
K	

FM
T	

IC
C	

TO
TA

L

M
an

ual
	

 $
   

27
,6

54
,6

98
 	

 $
 2

,0
15

,6
03

 	
 $

   
6,

18
7,

22
5 

	
 $

 1
6,

51
1,

47
9 

	
 $

 2
1,

04
3,

87
5 

	
 $

   
7,

00
5,

38
3 

	
$ 

  3
5,

19
5,

74
8 

	
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 	

 $
 1

15
,6

14
,0

10
 

E-
ZP

as
s	

 3
3,

53
9,

46
0 

	
92

0,
03

4 
	

 1
,3

28
,2

60
 	

 5
,6

26
,8

36
 	

 9
,0

92
,3

22
 	

 1
,0

14
,4

62
 	

 2
3,

63
8,

44
0 

	
 3

0,
86

3,
22

0 
	

 1
06

,0
23

,0
34

 
M

D 
E-

ZP
as

s	
 7

,8
19

,3
00

 	
72

6,
58

7 
	

 9
91

,3
68

 	
 9

,0
78

,9
68

 	
 8

,4
90

,1
29

 	
 3

,5
11

,2
56

 	
 1

5,
06

7,
06

1 
	

 - 
	

 4
5,

68
4,

67
0 

Co
m

m
ut

er
	

 1
,7

39
,7

33
 	

16
6,

56
9 

	
 8

73
,9

84
 	

 3
,2

58
,9

33
 	

 7
,2

21
,0

50
 	

 4
,2

39
,4

96
 	

 1
0,

58
2,

24
4 

	
 - 

	
 2

8,
08

2,
00

9 
Sh

op
pe

rs
	

 - 
	

 - 
	

 - 
	

 6
63

,1
61

 	
 - 

	
 - 

	
 - 

	
 - 

	
 6

63
,1

61
 

To
ta

l:	
 7

0,
75

3,
19

1 
	

 3
,8

28
,7

93
 	

 9
,3

80
,8

37
 	

 3
5,

13
9,

37
7 

	
 4

5,
84

7,
37

6 
	

 1
5,

77
0,

59
7 

	
 8

4,
48

3,
49

3 
	

 3
0,

86
3,

22
0 

	
 2

96
,0

66
,8

84
 

Class 



3 

Ve
hicles




M
an

ua
l 	

45
1,

34
4 

	
 8

0,
36

6 
	

 1
44

,6
24

 	
 3

98
,6

24
 	

 2
22

,8
70

 	
 2

24
,5

86
 	

 5
63

,9
28

 	
 - 

	
 2

,0
86

,3
42

 
A 

Se
rie

s	
 - 

	
 1

,1
52

 	
 - 

	
 - 

	
 - 

	
 - 

	
 - 

	
 - 

	
 1

,1
52

 
T 

Se
rie

s	
 - 

	
 2

07
,3

52
 	

 - 
	

 - 
	

 - 
	

 - 
	

 - 
	

 - 
	

 2
07

,3
52

 
E-

ZP
as

s	
2,

35
5,

04
8 

	
 3

66
,9

48
 	

 1
11

,3
36

 	
 7

00
,6

48
 	

 1
,2

43
,8

78
 	

 9
95

,6
82

 	
 2

,9
50

,2
66

 	
 9

83
,0

91
 	

 9
,7

06
,8

97
 

To
ta

l:	
2,

80
6,

39
2 

	
 6

55
,8

17
 	

 2
55

,9
60

 	
 1

,0
99

,2
72

 	
 1

,4
66

,7
48

 	
 1

,2
20

,2
68

 	
 3

,5
14

,1
94

 	
 9

83
,0

91
 	

 1
2,

00
1,

74
2 

Class 
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F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Intercounty Connector Average Daily Traffic Per Segment
(Includes segment counts and excludes toll free periods during commencement of operations)

								        “Full
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Facility	
	 Years	 Months	 I- 370 - MD 97	 MD 97 - MD 182	 MD 182 - MD 650	 MD 650 - US 29	 BC Rd - I -95	 Average”

	 2011	 Mar	  9,789 					      9,789 
		  Apr	  10,333 					      10,333 
		  May	  11,376 					      11,376 
		  Jun	  12,539 					      12,539 
		  Jul	  11,442 					      11,442 
		  Aug	  11,917 					      11,917 
		  Sep	  12,839 					      12,839 
		  Oct	  13,204 					      13,204 
		  Nov	  13,004 					      13,004 
		  Dec	  24,126 	  20,523 	  20,503 	  19,078 	  15,612 	  19,968 
								      
	 2012	 Jan	  23,212 	  20,015 	  20,031 	  18,550 	  14,961 	  19,354 
		  Feb	  24,996 	  22,022 	  21,956 	  20,364 	  16,403 	  21,148 
		  Mar	  26,849 	  23,981 	  23,975 	  22,339 	  17,848 	  22,998 
		  Apr	  27,260 	  24,582 	  23,998 	  22,927 	  18,433 	  23,440 
		  May	  29,429 	  26,765 	  26,698 	  24,980 	  19,957 	  25,566 
		  Jun	  31,027 	  28,485 	  28,468 	  26,871 	  21,857 	  27,341 
		  Jul	  29,821 	  27,673 	  27,483 	  25,832 	  20,968 	  26,355 
		  Aug	  30,824 	  28,958 	  28,968 	  27,393 	  22,293 	  27,687 
		  Sep	  30,810 	  28,869 	  28,949 	  27,337 	  22,129 	  27,619 
		  Oct	  30,955 	  29,276 	  29,393 	  27,803 	  22,557 	  27,997 
		  Nov	  31,739 	  30,145 	  30,266 	  28,702 	  23,126 	  28,795 
		  Dec	  29,451 	  27,731 	  27,908 	  26,540 	  21,432 	  26,612 
								      
	Growth over calendar year: 	 22%	 35%	 36%	 39%	 37%	 33%
								      
	 2013	 Jan	  29,655 	  28,151 	  28,251 	  26,740 	  21,289 	  26,817 
		  Feb	  31,093 	  29,704 	  29,809 	  28,219 	  22,579 	  28,281 
		  Mar	  30,969 	  29,535 	  29,655 	  28,238 	  22,951 	  28,270 
		  Apr	  35,030 	  33,734 	  33,728 	  32,028 	  25,856 	  32,075 
		  May	  35,929 	  34,537 	  34,498 	  32,821 	  26,771 	  32,911 
		  Jun	  35,854 	  34,392 	  34,310 	  32,724 	  26,573 	  32,771 
								      
	Growth over fiscal year:		 16%	 21%	 21%	 22%	 22%	 20%
								      
Growth (Current month versus  
   December 2011): 		  49%	 68%	 67%	 72%	 70%	 64%

Note: The first section (I-370 to MD97) of the Intercounty Connector opened on February 23, 2011. The second section (MD97 to I-95) opened on November 22, 2011. The final section is 
scheduled to open in Spring 2014.



94     x     M A RYL   A ND   TR  A NSPORT      A TION     A UTHORITY      

F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  
M

ar
yl

an
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Au

th
or

ity
St

at
em

en
t o

f T
ra

ffi
c 

Vo
lu

m
e 

an
d 

To
ll 

In
co

m
e 

Fo
r T

he
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
 E

nd
in

g 
Ju

ne
 3

0

IN
TE

RC
OU

NT
Y 

CO
NN

EC
TO

R 

TO
LL

 IN
CO

M
E

 	
20

13
	

20
12

 (F
or

 c
om

pa
ra

tiv
e 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y)
	

 C
ha

ng
es

 	
Ch

an
ge

s

Class 



2 

& 
8 

Ve
hicles




	
	

Nu
m

be
r	

Pe
rc

en
t	

Nu
m

be
r	

Pe
rc

en
t	

 N
um

be
r 	

Pe
rc

en
t

E-
ZP

ass
	

	
 $

 3
0,

86
3,

22
0 

	
77

.9
6%

	
 $

 1
6,

24
6,

44
1 

	
82

.3
3%

	
 $

 1
4,

61
6,

77
9 

	
89

.9
7%

Class 



3 

Ve
hicles




E-
ZP

as
s		


 9

83
,0

91
 	

2.
48

%
	

 4
73

,4
71

 	
2.

40
%

	
 5

09
,6

19
 	

10
7.

63
%

Class 



4 

Ve
hicles




E-
ZP

as
s		


 8

30
,7

85
 	

2.
10

%
	

 4
23

,1
79

 	
2.

14
%

	
 4

07
,6

06
 	

96
.3

2%

Class 



5 

Ve
hicles




E-
ZP

as
s		


 1

,9
63

,2
36

 	
4.

96
%

	
 8

86
,7

77
 	

4.
49

%
	

 1
,0

76
,4

59
 	

12
1.

39
%

Class 



6 

Ve
hicles




E-
ZP

as
s		


 5

5,
27

7 
	

0.
14

%
	

 3
2,

03
1 

	
0.

16
%

	
 2

3,
24

6 
	

72
.5

7%

Total 



(C

lass 


3
, 4

, 5
 &

 6
 V

eh
icles


)

	
 3

,8
32

,3
88

 	
9.

68
%

	
 1

,8
15

,4
58

 	
9.

20
%

	
 2

,0
16

,9
30

 	
11

1.
10

%
Vi

de
o 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

	
	

 4
,8

90
,6

72
 	

12
.3

5%
	

 1
,6

71
,1

24
 	

8.
47

%
	

 3
,2

19
,5

48
 	

19
2.

66
%

Grand 



Total


:

	
	

 $
 3

9,
58

6,
28

0 
	

10
0.

00
%

	
 $

 1
9,

73
3,

02
4 

	
10

0.
00

%
	

 $
 1

9,
85

3,
25

7 
	

10
0.

61
%

Traffic 





Composite






:

El
ec

tro
ni

c 
Tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
		


 3

4,
69

5,
60

9 
	

87
.6

5%
	

 1
8,

06
1,

90
0 

	
91

.5
3%

	
16

,6
33

,7
09

 	
92

.0
9%

Vi
de

o 
Tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
		


 4

,8
90

,6
72

 	
12

.3
5%

	
 1

,6
71

,1
24

 	
8.

47
%

	
3,

21
9,

54
8 

	
19

2.
66

%
	

	
 $

 3
9,

58
6,

28
0 

	
10

0.
00

%
	

 $
 1

9,
73

3,
02

4 
	

10
0.

00
%

	
 $

 1
9,

85
3,

25
7 

	
10

0.
61

%

Int
e

rco
u

nty
 

Conn


ector


 
op

en
ed

 F
eb

ru
ary

 
22

, 2
01

1 
Th

e 
IC

C 
is 

a 
va

ria
bl

y 
pr

ic
ed

 fa
ci

lit
y, 

he
re

 to
lls

 a
re

 h
ig

he
r d

ur
in

g 
pe

ak
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

es
.  

Th
e 

va
ria

bl
e 

to
llin

g 
is 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n.

	
	

Class 



2 

& 
8 

Ve
hicles




	
Class 




3 
Ve

hicles



	

Class 



4 

Ve
hicles




	
Class 




5 
Ve

hicles



	

Class 



6 

Ve
hicles




	
Pe

ak
	

$ 
.7

0 
- $

4.
00

	
$ 

2.
05

 - 
$1

2.
00

	
$ 

3.
10

 - 
$1

8.
00

	
$ 

4.
10

 - 
$2

4.
00

	
$ 

5.
10

 - 
$3

0.
00

	
Of

f P
ea

k	
$ 

.5
5 

- $
3.

20
	

$ 
1.

65
 - 

$9
.6

0	
$ 

2.
45

 - 
$1

4.
40

	
$ 

3.
30

 - 
$1

9.
20

	
$ 

4.
10

 - 
$2

4.
00

	
Ov

er
 N

ig
ht

	
$ 

.4
0 

- $
1.

60
	

$ 
.8

5 
- $

4.
80

	
$ 

1.
25

 - 
$7

.2
0	

$ 
1.

65
 - 

$9
.6

0	
$ 

2.
05

 - 
$1

2.
00

To
ta

l c
os

t t
o 

th
e 

cu
st

om
er

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

m
ile

s 
tra

ve
le

d.

Note


: N
um

be
rs

 m
ay

 n
ot

 s
um

 to
 to

ta
l d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

.



C o m p r e h e n s i v e  A n n u a l  F i n a n c i a l  Re  p o r t  F o r  t h e  F i s ca  l  Yea   r  E n d i n g  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 1 3     x      95

F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

M&T Bank, Trustee

Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee

Investment of Funds

Master Investment Schedule

June 30, 2013

Maryland Transportation Authority 1992 through 2012	  $    785,527,696 

Depository / GARVEE 2007 & 2008	  34,703,642 

BWI Airport Parking Garage 2012	  26,316,672 

BWI Airport Consolidated Rental Car Facility 2002	  34,028,022 

BWI Airport Passenger Facility Charge 2003 & 2012	  202,605,020 

Metrorail Parking Projects 2004	  5,079,403 

Calvert Street Parking 2005	  1,124,878 

  Total Current and Noncurrent Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments	  $ 1,089,385,333 
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F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee

Transportation Facilities Projects

Investment of Funds

Created Under Article V of the Trust Agreement

June 30, 2013

Operating	  $   27,050,379 

General	  229,996,798 

Maintenance & Operations Reserve	  50,297,185 

Operating Reserve	  53,831,807 

Capital	  264,191,086 

  Unrestricted Excluding Operating	  $ 598,316,876 

	

Bond Service & Debt Service Reserves	 160,160,441 

  Restricted Bond & Capital	  $ 160,160,441 

 

  Total Current and Noncurrent Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments	  $ 785,527,696  
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F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee

Intercounty Connector

Investment of Funds 

Created Under Article V of the Trust Agreement and Depository Agreement

June 30, 2013

GARVEE Debt Service 2007	  $              127 

GARVEE Debt Service Reserve 2007	  4,523,611 

GARVEE Debt Service 2008	  177 

GARVEE Debt Service Reserve 2008	  7,513,609 

ICC Depository 	  22,666,118 

  Total Current and Noncurrent Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments	  $  34,703,642 
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F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee

BWI Airport Parking Garage

Investment of Funds

Funds Created Under Article IV of the 2012 Trust Agreement

June 30, 2013

Debt Service Reserve	  $ 19,635,998 

Bond Service	  6,680,673 

   Total Current and Noncurrent Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments	  $ 26,316,671 
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F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee

BWI Airport Consolidated Rental Car Facility

Investment of Funds

Funds Created Under Article IV of the 2002 Trust Agreement

June 30, 2013

	

Facility Improvement	  $ 25,414,038 

Pledged Revenue	  614,081 

Coverage	  1,371,564 

Bond Service	  6,628,339 

   Total Current and Noncurrent Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments	  $ 34,028,022
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F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee

BWI Airport Passenger Facility ChargE

INvestment of Funds

Funds Created Under Article IV of the 2003 and 2012 Trust Agreement

June 30, 2013

Facility Improvement	  $   46,350,794 

Pledged Revenue	  4,437,968 

Debt Service Reserve	  14,134,696 

Construction	  125,364,605 

Credit Facility Proceeds	  13 

Bond Service	  12,316,944 

  Total Current and Noncurrent Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments	  $ 202,605,020 
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F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee

Metrorail Parking Projects

Investment of Funds

Funds Created Under Article IV of the 2004 Trust Agreement

June 30, 2013

Pledged Revenue 	 $ 2,132,744

Debt Service Reserve 	 2,946,659

Total Current and Noncurrent Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 	 $ 5,079,403
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F IN  A N C I A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee

 

Calvert Street Parking

Investment of Funds

Funds Created Under Article IV of the 2005 Trust Agreement

June 30, 2013

Expense 	 $        2,500

Bond Service 	 1,122,378

   Total Current and Noncurrent Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 	 $ 1,124,878
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

S t a t i s t i c a l  Sec   t i o n  I n d e x

This part of the Maryland Transportation Authority’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, notes, disclosures and required supplementary information 
says about the Authority’s overall financial health.

Contents
•	 Financial Trends – These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Authority’s financial 

performance and well-being have changed over time.

•	 Revenue Capacity Information – These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Authority’s revenues. 
The most significant revenues for the MDTA are Tolls, Intergovernmental and E-ZPass.

•	 Debt Capacity Information – These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Authority’s 
current level of outstanding debt and the ability to issue additional debt in the future.

•	 Demographic Information – These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the Authority’s financial activities take place.

•	 Operations – This section offers operating data to help the reader understand how the information in the Authority’s financial 
reports relates to the services it provides.
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

F i n a n c i a l  T r e n d s

Schedule of Net Position
As of June 30 

($ in Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Net Investment in Capital Assets	 $  2,396,410 	  $ 2,313,587 	  $ 2,115,839 	  $ 1,896,303 	  $ 1,362,646 	  $ 1,678,752

Restricted	 132,747 	 148,775 	 242,486 	 309,338 	 606,522 	 226,744

Unrestricted	 554,161 	 453,890 	 384,721 	 337,619 	 281,235 	 77,377

Total Net Position	 $ 3,083,318 	  $ 2,916,252 	  $ 2,743,046 	  $ 2,543,260 	  $ 2,250,403 	  $ 1,982,873 

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007.

TOTAL NET POSITION
As of June 30 

($ in Thousands)
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

(In Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Operating Revenues
	 Toll	  $    454,849 	  $    389,562 	  $    308,018 	  $    303,095 	  $    273,143 	  $    275,579 

	 Intergovernmental	  127,660 	  151,462 	  204,665 	  211,336 	  111,289 	  105,603 

	 E-ZPass Fees	  26,333 	  22,413 	  21,131 	  20,838 	  6,631 	  7,970 

	 Concession	  4,088 	  7,575 	  7,924 	  9,012 	  7,984 	  8,069 

	 Other	  4,404 	  7,185 	  5,589 	  4,896 	  3,922 	  4,405 

	 Total operating revenue	  617,334 	  578,197 	  547,327 	  549,177 	  402,969 	  401,626 

Operating Expenses
	 Collection, police patrol, and maintenance	  200,985 	  176,455 	  152,904 	  145,339 	  132,940 	  130,940 

	 Major repairs, replacements, and insurance	  11,633 	  54,960 	  59,389 	  59,768 	  57,400 	  53,319 

	 General and administrative	  30,124 	  29,739 	  30,616 	  26,631 	  21,331 	  32,692 

	 Depreciation	  103,743 	  47,919 	  45,354 	  50,414 	  46,216 	  59,616 

	 Total operating expenses	  346,485 	  309,073 	  288,263 	  282,152 	  257,887 	  276,567 

	 Income from operations	  270,849 	  269,124 	  259,064 	  267,025 	  145,082 	  125,059 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
	 Investment revenue	  650 	  3,975 	  1,467 	  1,790 	  11,916 	  6,878 

	 Restricted interest income on investments	  1,026 	  3,543 	  6,459 	  10,543 	  17,774 	  23,700 

	 Gain/Loss on disposal of land/infrastructure	  (10,293)	  (16,949)	  (996)	  58,707 	  815 	  - 

	 Interest on direct financing leases	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  839 

	 Restricted interest on direct financing leases	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  23,662 

	 Interest expense	  (95,166)	  (86,487)	  (66,208)	  (45,208)	  (50,496)	  (49,154)

	 Net non-operating revenue and expenses	  (103,783)	  (95,918)	  (59,278)	  25,832 	  (19,991)	  5,925 

	 Change in net position	  167,066 	  173,206 	  199,786 	  292,857 	  125,091 	  130,984 

	 Net Position - Beginning of Year	  2,916,252 	  2,743,046 	  2,543,260 	  2,250,403 	  2,125,312* 	  1,851,889 

	 Net Position - End of Year	  $ 3,083,318 	  $ 2,916,252 	  $ 2,743,046 	  $ 2,543,260 	  $ 2,250,403 	  $ 1,982,873 

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007.

* Net Position was restated from the prior year.
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

Reve    n u e  C a p a c i t y

TRAFFIC VOLUME BY VEHICLE CLASS
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

(In Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Two Axle		  120,177 	  118,699 	  111,161 	  107,448 	  107,409 	  109,244 

Three Axle	  1,694 	  1,678 	  1,646 	  1,613 	  1,622 	  1,747 

Four Axle	  1,091 	  1,041 	  997 	  976 	  983 	  1,093 

Five Axle		  5,324 	  5,337 	  5,410 	  5,384 	  5,752 	  6,389 

Six Axle	  	 107 	  115 	  108 	  115 	  112 	  134 

Unusual (1)	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  8 	  13 

Video Transactions/Violations	  2,417 	  1,307 	  4,332 	  802 	  563 	  1,292 

Total Traffic Volume	 130,810 	 128,177 	 123,654 	 116,338 	 116,449 	 119,912 

Percentage of Tolls Collected Electronically	 74%	 71%	 63%	 62%	 60%	 56%

(1) Unusual, or the Class 7 Vehicle Class was eliminated May 1, 2009, and replaced with a lower toll based on the number of axles and an oversize and/or overweight  
vehicle permit.

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007.  The first section of the Intercounty Connector opened on February 23, 2011 and the second section opened on 
November 22, 2011.  The final section is scheduled to open in Spring 2014.

TRAFFIC VOLUME BY VEHICLE CLASS
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30  

(In Thousands)
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

TOLL REVENUE BY VEHICLE CLASS
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

($ in Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Two Axle		 $ 296,067 	 $ 258,056 	 $ 195,883 	 $ 191,065 	 $ 187,057 	 $ 188,285 

Three Axle	  12,002 	  12,209 	  12,583 	  12,475 	  8,972 	  8,675 

Four Axle	  12,189 	  11,824 	  11,942 	  11,891 	  8,654 	  8,719 

Five Axle	 	 122,939 	  106,174 	  90,693 	  90,651 	  69,996 	  71,352 

Six Axle		   3,128 	  2,769 	  2,202 	  2,389 	  1,665 	  1,853 

Unusual (1)	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  282 	  444 

Commercial Usage Discounts	  (5,327)	  (6,138)	  (6,932)	  (6,820)	  (4,844)	  (4,967)

Video Transactions/Violations	  13,852 	  4,667 	  1,647 	  1,446 	  1,361 	  1,218 

Total Toll Revenue	 $ 454,849 	 $ 389,562 	 $ 308,018 	 $ 303,095 	 $ 273,143 	 $ 275,579 

(1) Unusual, or the Class 7 Vehicle Class, was eliminated May 1, 2009, and replaced with a lower toll based on the number of axles and an oversize and/or overweight  
vehicle permit.

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007. 

TOLL REVENUE BY VEHICLE CLASS
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

($ in Thousands)
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

TRAFFIC VOLUME BY FACILITY
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

(In Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Thomas J. Hatem Memorial Bridge (Hatem)	  4,563 	  5,034 	  5,070 	  4,993 	  5,040 	  5,556 

Intercounty Connector (ICC)	  17,198 	  10,043 	  2,192 	  - 	  - 	  - 

Harry W. Nice Memorial Bridge (Nice)	  3,261 	  3,290 	  3,401 	  3,354 	  3,347 	  3,391 

William Preston Lane Bridge (WPL)	  12,736 	  13,666 	  13,558 	  12,994 	  12,752 	  13,370 

Baltimore Harbor Tunnel (BHT)	  23,972 	  25,749 	  26,117 	  25,226 	  25,534 	  25,771 

Francis Scott Key Bridge (FSK)	  10,922 	  11,048 	  11,647 	  10,959 	  11,688 	  12,343 

John F. Kennedy Memorial Highway (JFK)	  14,582 	  14,824 	  15,375 	  14,749 	  14,642 	  14,652 

Fort McHenry Tunnel (FMT)	  43,576 	  44,523 	  46,294 	  44,063 	  43,446 	  44,829 

Total Traffic Volume	 130,810 	 128,177 	 123,654 	 116,338 	 116,449 	 119,912

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007.  The first section of the Intercounty Connector opened on February 23, 2011 and the second section opened on 
November 22, 2011.  The final section is scheduled to open in Spring 2014.

TRAFFIC VOLUME BY FACILITY
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013 

(In Thousands)
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

TOLL REVENUE BY FACILITY
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

($ in Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Thomas J. Hatem Memorial Bridge (Hatem)	  $     7,869 	  $     5,214 	  $     2,776 	  $     2,573 	  $     2,040 	  $     3,834 

Intercounty Connector (ICC)	  39,586 	  19,733 	  1,426 	  - 	  - 	  - 

Harry W. Nice Memorial Bridge (Nice)	  13,049 	  11,538 	  10,040 	  10,036 	  9,693 	  9,996 

William Preston Lane Bridge (WPL)	  52,795 	  46,409 	  37,052 	  36,231 	  32,136 	  33,465 

Baltimore Harbor Tunnel (BHT)	  52,473 	  48,369 	  37,271 	  36,428 	  35,192 	  34,880 

Francis Scott Key Bridge (FSK)	  29,217 	  25,581 	  20,395 	  20,151 	  18,315 	  19,133 

John F. Kennedy Memorial Highway (JFK)	  123,004 	  114,897 	  105,391 	  105,316 	  93,847 	  91,369 

Fort McHenry Tunnel (FMT)	  136,856 	  117,821 	  93,667 	  92,360 	  81,920 	  82,902 

Total Toll Revenue	  $ 454,849 	  $ 389,562 	  $ 308,018 	  $ 303,095 	  $ 273,143 	  $ 275,579 

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007.  The first section of the Intercounty Connector opened on February 23, 2011 and the second 
section opened on November 22, 2011.  The final section is scheduled to open in Spring 2014.

TOLL REVENUE BY FACILITY
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013 
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

	HIS TORY OF TOLL RATES BY FACILITY (1)

		  JFK Memorial	 Baltimore		   
Vehicle Class	 Highway and Hatem Bridge	 Harbor Crossings (2)	 Chesapeake Bay Bridge	 Nice Bridge 

	 	 Toll Rates Prior to May 1, 2009

Two Axle Vehicles 

   Cash and E-ZPass	 $5.00	 $2.00	 $2.50	 $3.00

   Commuters	 0.80/Decal (3)	 0.40	 1.00	 0.60

Three Axle Vehicles 	 10.00	 4.00	 5.00	 6.00

Four Axle Vehicles 	 15.00	 6.00	 7.50	 9.00

Five Axle Vehicles 	 20.00	 8.00	 10.00	 12.00

Six Axle Vehicles 	 25.00	 10.00	 12.50	 15.00

	 Toll Rates May 1, 2009 to November 1, 2011

Two Axle Vehicles 				  

   Cash and E-ZPass			 

   Commuters				  

Three Axle Vehicles 	 15.00	 6.00	 9.00	 9.00

Four Axle Vehicles 	 23.00	 9.00	 12.00	 12.00

Five Axle Vehicles 	 30.00	 12.00	 15.00	 15.00

Six Axle Vehicles 	 38.00	 15.00	 18.00	 18.00

	 Toll Rates November 1, 2011 to January 1, 2012

Two Axle Vehicles 				  

   Cash and E-ZPass (4)	 6.00	 3.00	 4.00	 4.00

   Commuters	 1.50	 0.75	 1.00	 1.00

Three Axle Vehicles 				  

Four Axle Vehicles 				  

Five Axle Vehicles 			 

Six Axle Vehicles 

	 	 Toll Rates January 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013

Two Axle Vehicles 				  

   Cash and E-ZPass				  

   Commuters				  

Three Axle Vehicles 	 12.00	 6.00	 8.00	 8.00

Four Axle Vehicles 	 18.00	 9.00	 12.00	 12.00

Five Axle Vehicles 	 36.00	 18.00	 24.00	 24.00

Six Axle Vehicles 	 45.00	 23.00	 30.00	 30.00

(1) Toll rates for the Intercounty Connector were approved on June 11, 2010.  Toll rates vary by time of day based on peak, off-peak and overnight pricing periods.  Rates for two 
axle vehicles range from $0.10 to $0.25 per mile.

(2) Includes the Francis Scott Key Bridge, Fort McHenry Tunnel and Baltimore Harbor Tunnel.

(3) Decals are used at the Hatem Bridge only and provide unlimited passage for one year.  On May 1, 2009, the cost increased from $5.00 to $10.00.  Decals were replaced by 
a Hatem Bridge only E-ZPass account on October 1, 2012.	

(4) Effective November 1, 2011, two axle vehicles with Maryland-based E-ZPass accounts receive a 10% discount on the cash toll rate and the video toll rate was set at 150% 
of the cash toll rate.

No Change

No Change

No Change
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

D E B T  C a p a c i t y

Debt Service Coverage-Revenue Bonds
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

(In Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Revenues

    Toll Revenues	  $ 454,849 	  $ 389,562 	  $ 308,018 	  $ 303,095 	  $ 273,143 	  $ 275,579 

    Concession 	  4,088 	  7,575 	  7,924 	  9,012 	  7,984 	  8,069 

    Other (1)	  40,815 	  42,672 	  31,749 	  32,585 	  17,368 	  33,891 

    Revenue Adjustment (2)	  (17,007)	  (11,909)	  (4,248)	  (4,854)	  (4,580)	  (29,343)

    Pledged Investment Income	  473 	  368 	  771 	  633 	  1,803 	  3,550 

    Gross Revenues 	  $ 483,218 	  $ 428,268 	  $ 344,214 	  $ 340,471 	  $ 295,718 	  $ 291,746 

Expenses 

    Operating 	  $ 190,988 	  $ 222,445 	  $ 205,210 	  $ 205,107 	  $ 190,340 	  $ 145,075 

    General & Administrative 	  51,754 	  38,709 	  37,700 	  26,629 	  21,330 	  28,663 

    Expense Adjustment (3) 	  (31,928)	  (74,272)	  (77,624)	  (77,451)	  (67,325)	  (25,877)

        Total Expenses 	  $ 210,814 	  $ 186,882 	  $ 165,286 	  $ 154,285 	  $ 144,345 	  $ 147,861 

Net Revenues 	  $ 272,404 	  $ 241,386 	  $ 178,928 	  $ 186,186 	  $ 151,373 	  $ 143,885 

Debt Service (4)	  $ 109,874 	  $   87,990 	  $   35,662 	  $   35,287 	  $   35,287 	  $   32,910 

Debt Service Coverage	  2.48 	  2.74 	  5.02 	  5.28 	  4.29 	  4.37 

(1)  Collections in Excess of Calculated Tolls, E-ZPass Fees, Automatic Vehicle Identification Decals, Participation in Maintenance, Commissions, Rental Property, Grants, In lieu 
of Federal Funds and Miscellaneous Revenue.

(2)  Non pledged revenue - Intergovernmental revenue, E-ZPass Fees, Thomas J. Hatem Bridge revenue and miscellaneous. 

(3)  Expenses payable from non-pledged revenue-General Account Project expense, Airport & Port Police expenses. 

(4)  Debt Service - January of current fiscal year and July 1st of the next fiscal year. 

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007.
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

Maryland Transportation Authority

Debt Limitations
For The Fiscal Years Ending  June 30 

($ in Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009(1)	 2008

Legal Bonded Debt Limit	  $ 3,000,000 	  $ 3,000,000 	  $ 3,000,000 	  $ 3,000,000 	  $ 3,000,000 	  $ 1,900,000 

Net Debt - applicable debt outstanding	  2,295,512 	  2,321,595 	  2,293,026 	  1,630,065 	  1,094,138 	  1,106,801 

Total Legal Debt Margin	  $    704,488 	  $    678,405 	  $    706,974 	  $ 1,369,935 	  $ 1,905,862 	  $    793,199 

Outstanding Bond Debt as Percentage 
of Legal Bonded Debt Limit	 76.5%	 77.4%	 76.4%	 54.3%	 36.5%	 58.3%

(1) The Maryland Transportation Authority debt limit was raised from $1.9 billion to $3.0 billion in the 2008 Legislative Session.  The effective date was July 1, 2008, fiscal 
year 2009.

Note: This schedule includes toll revenue-backed revenue bonds only, as this is the only debt that the Authority provides security for and is the only debt subject to the $3.0 
billion debt outstanding limit.

DEBT OUTSTANDING AND LEGAL BONDED DEBT LIMIT
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

($ in Thousands)
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

De  m o g r a p h i c  a n d  E c o n o m i c  I n f o r m a t i o n

Maryland Transportation Authority

Schedule of Demographic Statistics For Maryland
Calendar Year 2012 and Nine Years Prior (1)

		  Total Personal Income	 Per Capita	 Unemployment 
	 Population (2)	 (In Thousands) (3)	 Personal Income (4)	 Rate (5)

2012	  5,884,563  	 $ 305,826,774 	  $  51,971 	 6.9%

2011	 5,839,572 	 295,235,516 	  50,656 	 7.4%

2010	 5,787,998 	  281,304,904 	  48,621 	 7.8%

2009	  5,730,388 	  271,728,830 	  47,419 	 7.5%

2008	  5,684,965 	  277,792,794 	  48,864 	 4.1%

2007	  5,653,408 	  264,797,709 	  46,839 	 3.4%

2006	  5,627,367 	  252,431,010 	  44,858 	 3.9%

2005	  5,592,379 	  237,146,065 	  42,405 	 4.2%

2004	  5,546,935 	  224,645,696 	  40,499 	 4.3%

2003	 5,496,269 	 209,700,756 	  38,153 	 4.6%

(1) Data for calendar year 2013 is not yet available.

(2) Source:  U.S. Census Bureau

(3) Source:  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis 

(4) Source:  U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics 

(5) Source:  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis  
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

Maryland’s Ten Largest Private Employers
Calendar Years

	 2013 (1)	 2004 (2)

	 Giant Foods of Maryland, LLC	 Giant Foods of Maryland, LLC

	 Helix Health Systems	 Helix Health Systems

	 Home Depot USA, Inc.	 Home Depot USA, Inc.

	 Johns Hopkins Hospital	 Johns Hopkins Hospital

	 Johns Hopkins University	 Johns Hopkins University

	 Northrup Grumman Corp	 Northrup Grumman Corp

	 Safeway, Inc.	 Safeway, Inc.

	 Target	 United Parcel Service

	 University of Maryland Medical System	 Verizon Maryland, Inc.

	 Wal-Mart 	 Wal-Mart 

(1) Source: Maryland Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation, Office of Workforce Development and Adult Learning, Major Employment List, March 2013

(2) Source: Maryland Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation, Office of Labor Market Analysis and Information, Top Private Employers/Maryland Career 
and Workforce Information
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Schedule of Employment by Sector
Calendar Year 2012 (1) and Nine Years Prior

	 Calendar Year 2012	 Calendar Year 2003
	 Average 	 Total 	 Average 	 Average 	 Total 	 Average 
	 Annual 	 Wages	 Weekly Wage	 Annual 	 Wages	 Weekly Wage	
	 Employment	 (In Thousands)	 Per Worker	 Employment	 (In Thousands)	 Per Worker

Government

State and local	  352,424 	  $   4,400,820 	  $    939 	  326,686 	  $   3,374,175 	  $   807 

Federal	  	 146,040 	  3,368,894 	  1,774 	  127,569 	  2,128,933 	  1,284 

   Total Government	  498,464 	  7,769,714 	  1,199 	  454,255 	  5,503,108 	  932 

Manufacturing	  107,156 	  1,832,033 	  1,315 	  144,745 	  1,937,705 	  1,030 

Natural Resources and Mining	  6,727 	  69,778 	  798 	  6,448 	  52,800 	  632 

Construction	  145,018 	  2,213,980 	  1,174 	  171,749 	  2,026,198 	  907 

Trade Transportation and Utilities	  456,189 	  4,821,381 	  813 	  471,999 	  4,176,205 	  681 

Information Services	  39,809 	  774,728 	  1,497 	  29,798 	  738,751 	  1,143 

Financial Activities	  138,157 	  3,084,049 	  1,717 	  156,452 	  2,333,347 	  1,147 

Professional and Business Services	  413,466 	  8,034,707 	  1,495 	  365,564 	  4,881,949 	  1,027 

Education and Health Services	  404,759 	  5,149,381 	  979 	  330,654 	  3,287,578 	  765 

Leisure and Hospitality	  239,902 	  1,271,434 	  408 	  216,929 	  968,169 	  343 

Unclassified And other Services	  90,171 	  842,515 	  719 	  91,013 	  667,835 	  765 

Total of all sectors	  2,539,818 	  $ 35,863,701 	  $ 1,086 	  2,439,606 	  $ 26,573,644 	  $   831 

(1) Data for calendar year 2013 is not yet available.

Source:  Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation’s Division of Workforce Development and Adult Learning Employment and Payrolls - Industry Series - Maryland - 
Fourth Quarter 2012 and Fourth Quarter 2003
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ST  A TISTI     C A L  S E C TION  

O p e r a t i o n s

Capital Assets
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30th 

($ In Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land 		   $    387,239 	  $    383,687 	  $    411,331 	  $    404,872 	  $    395,850 	  $    351,296 

Construction in Progress	 1,217,254 	  1,007,407 	  2,833,233 	  2,175,250 	  1,381,193 	  846,024 

     Total non-Depreciated	  1,604,493 	  1,391,094 	  3,244,564 	  2,580,122 	  1,777,043 	  1,197,320 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Infrastructure	  4,842,850 	  4,736,522 	  2,497,157 	  2,400,443 	  2,544,118 	  2,461,299 

Building 		  62,214 	  57,485 	  47,619 	  43,783 	  43,783 	  53,671 

Equipment	  46,702 	  41,169 	  34,859 	  31,184 	  55,960 	  43,783 

     Total depreciated	  4,951,766 	 4,835,176 	  2,579,635 	  2,475,410 	  2,643,861 	  2,558,753 

		   6,556,259 	  6,226,270 	  5,824,199 	  5,055,532 	  4,420,904 	  3,756,073 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Infrastructure	  1,284,625 	  1,204,311 	  1,177,263 	  1,141,540 	  1,168,517 	  1,133,140 

Building 		  23,801 	  23,049 	  22,032 	  21,209 	  20,293 	  19,376 

Equipment	  20,571 	  17,346 	  14,822 	  12,235 	  38,386 	  35,156 

     Total Accumulated Depreciation 	  1,328,997 	  1,244,706 	  1,214,117 	  1,174,984 	  1,227,196 	  1,187,672 

		   $ 5,227,262 	  $ 4,981,564 	  $ 4,610,082 	  $ 3,880,548 	  $ 3,193,708 	  $ 2,568,401 

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007.
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OPERATING EXPENSES
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

($ in Thousands)

	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Collection, Police Patrol and Maintenance	  $ 200,985 	  $ 176,455 	  $ 152,904 	  $ 145,339 	  $ 132,940 	  $ 130,940 

Major Repairs, Replacements, and Insurance	  11,633 	  54,960 	  59,389 	  59,768 	  57,400 	  53,319 

General and Administrative	  30,124 	  29,739 	  30,616 	  26,631 	  21,331 	  32,692 

Depreciation	  103,743 	  47,919 	  45,354 	  50,414 	  46,216 	  59,616 

Total Operating Expenses	 $ 346,485 	 $ 309,073 	 $ 288,263 	 $ 282,152 	 $ 257,887 	 $ 276,567 

Note: Information not available for fiscal year 2004 through 2007.

OPERATING EXPENSES
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30
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CHANGE IN POSITIONS
For The Fiscal Years Ending June 30

							       Staffing Change 
	 2013	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008	 from 2013-2008

Administrative	 188	 175	 184	 187	 185	 186	 2

Operations	 873	 875	 866	 825	 829	 835	 39

Police	 427	 426	 429	 407	 394	 398	 29

Reimbursable (1)	 215	 225	 229	 229	 247	 241	 -26

Engineering/Capital Planning	 86	 88	 93	 92	 89	 98	 -12

Total	 1,789	 1,789	 1,801	 1,740	 1,744	 1,758	 32

Maryland State Police (2)	 57	 57	 57	 57	 58	 58	 0

(1) Reimbursable includes police services at BWI Marshall Airport and the Port of Baltimore.

(2) Maryland State Police provides law enforcement services on the John F. Kennedy Memorial Highway

Source: Maryland Transportation Authority’s FY 2015 Operating Budget

NUMBER OF POSITIONS BY YEAR
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30
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m a r y l a n d  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  a u t h o r i t y

An Enterprise Fund of the State of Maryland
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